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CONTACT INFORMATION: 
 
 
Office Address:     Telephone:     Email 
3 Baron-Hay Court     +61 (08) 9423 0500    pmc@pmc.wa.gov.au 
SOUTH PERTH  WA  6151 
 
 
Postal Address:     Fax:      Website: 
Bin 40, 3 Baron-Hay Court    +61 (08) 9423 0566    www.pmc.wa.gov.au 
SOUTH PERTH  WA  6151 
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

 

 
The Hon Ken Baston MLC 
Minister for Agriculture and Food; Fisheries 
4th Floor, London House 
216 St Georges Terrace 
Perth  WA  6000 
 
In accordance with Section 63 of the Financial Management Act 2006, we hereby  
submit for your information and presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of the 
Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia for the financial year ended 30 
June 2014. 
 
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the       
Financial Management Act 2006, Treasurer’s Instructions and all relevant accounting 
standards. 
 
 
 H Russell, Chairman    
 
 
 A McAuliffe, Board Member   
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A full copy of this document is available online in both word and pdf 

format from the Potato Marketing Corporation of WA website at  

www.pmc.wa.gov.au. 

 

 

Previous years’ annual reports can also be found on the website.  

 

 

The PDF version is an interactive document which contains links 

enabling easy navigation to different sections of the report.  

 

 

This document is available in alternative formats upon request.  

 

 

Copying of this document, in whole or in part, for non -commercial 

purposes is permitted provided that the Potato Marketing Corporation of 

WA receives the appropriately required acknowledgement and 

recognition. All other copying of this document is not permitted without 

the Corporation’s written consent.     
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Report framework 
 
This annual report presents an analysis of the Potato Marketing Corporation of WA’s performance and operations for the financial year ended 
30 June 2014 under the following four key categories:  
 

 Overview    
 A summary of what the Corporation does, its responsibilities, the organisational structure and key performance outcomes. 
 
 Agency performance 
 Highlighting the operational achievements for the period of 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 and providing a comparison with  
    the desired outcomes.  
 
 Significant issues impacting the agency 
 Addressing current and emerging issues which have the potential to impact on our operational achievement  and performance    
    targets. 
 
 Disclosures and legal compliance 
 Providing an analysis of audited financial statements, key performance indicators, outcomes and detailed financial disclosure.  
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 Section 1 - Overview 

1.1 Executive Summary 

Key statistics for 2013-14 include: 

  Increase of 3,676 tonnes in Domestic Market Entitlement (DME) allocations to growers to 58,555 tonnes (up 6.6%). 

  Increase of 3,157 tonnes in deliveries by growers to 54,671 tonnes (up 6.1%). 

  Decrease of 568 tonnes in imports (from the eastern states) to 1621 tonnes (down 26.0%). 

  Increase of $1.12 tonne in Corporation services costs excluding marketing to $54.90 tonne (up 2.1%). 

 
 

The 2013-14 Fiscal Year represented a significant year for the Corporation in relation to the 

introduction of a number of significant quality improvement initiatives. This included the       

introduction of quality requirements on grower licences, a number of activities targeting best 

practice for growers including, an irrigation field day and soil health improvement workshops 

sponsored by the Manjimup Pemberton Potato Growers Group. The PMC also strengthened 

its internal quality capabilities with the appointment of an additional Quality Operations Officer 

and the establishment of a separate Quality Team of two Operations Officers. 

Overview 
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These officers are tertiary qualified and will work with growers, wash packers and Dr Steve Milroy at Potato Research WA to 

improve quality outcomes across the supply chain.  Potato Research WA has now been firmly established with Dr Milroy 

working closely with the PMC Operations team, grower groups and developing research grant proposals covering key areas 

of need.   

The renewed PMC emphasis on quality is especially important as it is becoming increasingly clear that growers with poor 

pack out results will struggle to generate adequate returns and remain viable going forward.  Moreover, there is a flow on    

effect across the whole industry resulting in lost market opportunities with the major retailers.  On a more positive note, a 

number of growers have lifted their quality performance with a more than commensurate return based on better pack outs.  

Work carried out by Agronomica on behalf of the Corporation clearly indicates that the additional input costs associated with 

better agronomic practice is returned many times over by the improved quality return resulting from such improvements.        

A combined effort from all growers is required to take advantage of the lost market opportunity, and to enable the industry to 

grow and compete successfully.  The quality, agronomical support and initiatives that are being driven by the PMC and being 

offered to all growers will result in sustainable improvements in the medium to long-term. 

Although the industry average Class 1 volume only exhibited a 0.2 per cent improvement in the 2013-14 Fiscal Year, several 

individual growers achieved significant quality improvement results.  Of all growers who grew in the 2013-14 season, around 

40 per cent had a quality improvement over the previous year.  For many that did not show an improvement, weather played 

a significant role in their quality result.  Notwithstanding this, there remains significant room for improvement with many   

growers.  The Corporation is conducting benchmarking interviews with growers to assist in this quality improvement process.   

It is worth noting that with an increase in yellow varieties over coming seasons, overall average quality figures may not show 

improvement, as growers optimise the agronomic packages to grow the new varieties.   

The shortfall in grower deliveries against DME was due to a combination of issues including severe weather and climatic 

events, adversely impacting yield and quality.  Particularly significant was the excess rainfall and cold that affected first   

plantings in Manjimup and Pemberton, and crop failures in Myalup post planting. These issues resulted in internal defects in 

some key varieties including Royal Blue (also affected by summer heat), a variety that Coles ceased stocking over the      

summer period.    

Overview 
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Notwithstanding these issues, the increase in actual tonnes delivered by growers was a positive result.  Potato prices to 

wholesale merchants remained stable, resulting in certainty for merchants and improved returns to growers, whilst retail     

prices remained one of the lowest compared to other major capital cities.  Factors contributing to strong consumer demand in 

2013/14 included reduced competition from Eastern States imports, stable pricing to wholesale merchants and competitive 

pricing at the retail level. 

The 2013-14 Fiscal Year saw the first fruits of the PMC’s return into marketing and promotion following a request from    

growers and the agreement of Western Potatoes that the PMC take over this important role so vital to the future of the        

industry.  Growers overwhelmingly supported the development and implementation of a category marketing program, which 

was launched by the Minister at the Royal Show in October 2013.  The value of the marketing campaign is not only in the aim 

of arresting category decline and turning it into growth over the next three years, but also in the additional leverage and    

credibility it provides the PMC in dealing with the major retailers.  It is also an enabler for possible marketing expansion into 

other states, negotiating agreements with plant breeders, and facilitates the development of new products.  Already, results 

indicate that consumers are purchasing a larger volume of potatoes on a weekly basis year on year, and are also spending 

more per kilo on potatoes year on year.  Over the course of the year, the category marketing program was delivered on time 

and budget. 

Overview 
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1.2 Chairman’s Report 

 

The 2013-14 Fiscal Year saw the PMC making significant headway in delivering the 2011 McKinna recommendations, with 

structural and cultural change in the PMC facilitating the Corporation’s delivery of these important reforms.  Some of the reforms 

will take time to come to fruition, while others such as continuous improvement are ongoing.  However, at this stage, all of the   

reforms that the PMC has the remit to deliver have at least been commenced with work underway, while many have been     

completed. 

With Stan Boczar joining the PMC as the Chief Financial Officer, the executive team of the Corporation is now complete.  With 

the previously acting Chief Executive Officer Peter Evans having now been confirmed in the position by the Minister, Tim        

Cusack in the Chief Operating Officer role and Paul Graham as the Marketing Manager, the PMC is well placed to face its future 

challenges.  These include ongoing challenges represented by major retail quality requirements, ‘closed loop’ varieties, vertical 

integration in elements of the supply chain, and meeting changing consumer and retailer preferences for new varieties.   

However, the major immediate challenge is the Economic Regulation Authority’s (ERA) recommendation for deregulation.   The 

PMC has worked tirelessly in conjunction with the Potato Growers Association (PGA) to demonstrate the benefits of the          

regulated system.  It has focussed on an evidenced based approach to the ERA’s recommendations, commissioning a report 

from the respected economics consultancy ACIL Allen.   This report, which has been well received and praised for its objectivity, 

clearly demonstrates that the overall cost of the PMC is insignificant in State terms and falls within the supply chain.  Most      

importantly, the report demonstrates that consumers are not adversely affected by the operation of the regulated system. 

Overview 

The PMC is focusing on strategies to create a platform for the industry’s future past 2020 
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In relation to the ongoing challenges, the Corporation has instituted a range of measures designed to meet these challenges and 

take the industry forward.  Major cultural change has been undertaken to improve skill levels and organisational capacity to      

successfully implement the required reforms.  An internal PMC strategic plan has been developed to deliver the McKinna intent 

and create the platform for the industry’s future.  The plan is focussed on maximising the efficiency of the supply chain, and       

ensuring the needs of consumers for freshness, quality and choice of varieties are satisfied. 

Potato Research WA is now well established and continues its work on potato quality, variety, yield and disease that provides a 

key impetus to assist quality improvement for WA growers.  Potato Research WA has identified agronomic and grower production 

issues that are being analysed and addressed.  This centre is also establishing state, national and international relationships that 

will provide important linkages for the future. 

New licencing arrangements for farm retained seed is in place which enable growers to retain seed from their own ware crops for 

future use.  The Corporation has identified seed and grower availability issues and continues to underwrite seed capacity to meet 

forecast demand for several varieties.  

The Corporation’s Sales and Operational Planning Process, has been cemented with an improved buy in to the process from all 

key industry stakeholders such as major retailers, merchants and the PMC operations and marketing teams.  This process will   

expand and become an even more powerful tool for demand management in the upcoming year. 

The new Compliance Protocols introduced with the cooperation of the merchants and recommended under McKinna has provided 

a thoroughly objective view of pack outs.  This, combined with the PMC initiative of growers attending pack outs, allows growers to 

have increased confidence in the system.  At the same time, it demonstrates that some of the more strident claims about pack 

outs have little foundation in fact. 

Overview 

Potato Research WA act as the leading research provider on quality improvement projects for the WA potato industry 
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Herbert Russell   

Chairman 

The marketing consumption campaign continues to focus on increasing consumer consumption and growing market share. This 

campaign will provide an ongoing coordinated marketing approach which provides a level of confidence in the future of the       

industry for all participants.  Consumer research suggests the campaign is already having an impact with the WA statistics    

trending above the national average.  Discussions have also been held with key stakeholders from the Eastern States regarding      

extending the campaign on a national basis. 

The PMC moved from its traditional Cockburn Road site in January 2014.  The move of the Corporation into new premises was 

made necessary by the unacceptable risk of asbestos related health issues, and the potential ongoing maintenance costs at the 

Cockburn Road site.  After an extensive search, alternative office accommodation was sourced at the DAFWA South Perth site.  

As Chairman, I would like to extend the Board’s thanks to Mr Rob Delane, Director General of DAFWA and those DAFWA staff 

that facilitated the PMC’s move to the new location. 

As stated previously, the significant change the industry is experiencing is challenging for all stakeholders, but is essential to    

ensure that WA has a vibrant industry into the future.  The Corporation is committed to working with all stakeholders to achieve 

this outcome. 

There have been no changes to the Board composition during the course of the year. 

Overview 
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Enabling Legislation 

Responsible Minister 

1.3 Operational Structure 

The Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia was established under the Marketing of Potatoes Act 1946.  The Act and 

Regulations set out the functions of the Corporation and the framework within which it is to operate. 

The Corporation reports to the Hon Ken Baston MLC, Minister for Agriculture and Food; Fisheries. 

  

Section 20(a) of the Act gives the Minister the power to direct the Corporation in writing concerning the performance of its        

functions, either generally or with respect to a particular matter. 

  

Under Section 19(a) of the Act, a person aggrieved by a decision made by the Corporation in exercising its powers may apply to 

the State Administrative Tribunal for a review of the decision. 

Overview 
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Functions of the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia 

The functions of the Corporation are defined in Section 17(a) of the Marketing of Potatoes Act 1946, being to: 

 Regulate the production of ware potatoes so as to ensure the supply of quantities, kinds and qualities preferred by consumers 

in the State. 

 Take delivery of, and otherwise deal with, potatoes in accordance with this Act and market potatoes in the State and         

elsewhere.  

 Register persons who are to be authorised to carry on business as a commercial producer of potatoes and license the areas 

of land to be used in any such business. 

 Encourage and promote the use of potatoes and provide for the monitoring and, if thought fit, regulation of the production of 

potatoes for propagation or for any other prescribed kind of use. 

 Foster methods of production and adopt methods of marketing that will enable potatoes grown in the State to compete in 

price and quality against potatoes from alternative sources of supply. 

 Promote, encourage, fund and arrange for the conduct of research into matters relating to the production and marketing of 

potatoes and undertake market development. 

 Seek and apply knowledge of new and improved techniques and materials that will assist it to perform its functions. 

Overview 
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Under the Marketing of Potatoes Act 1946, the Potato Marketing         

Corporation of Western Australia has the remit to efficiently and            

effectively manage the WA ware potato supply chain.  

The Operations division of the PMC is responsible for the supply, quality, 

compliance, implementation and administration of the licensing protocols 

established under the Marketing of Potatoes Act.  

To achieve this, the Corporation aims at supply chain optimisation, which 

is ensuring supply matches consumer demand in terms of quality,     

quantity and varieties of fresh ware potatoes all year round.  

MISSION STATEMENT 

To provide leadership for the WA ware potato industry in meeting    

consumer demand via cost effective supply chain optimisation, category 

marketing and development and innovation. 

Overview 
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Organisational Chart 

Overview 
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1.4 The Board of the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia 

The Board consists of a Chairman and members who have relevant commercial expertise in potato growing, finance, marketing 

or the food industry.  

  

The Board is responsible to the Minister for Agriculture and Food, who appoints the Chairman and members, of whom two are 

elected by commercial potato producers under the Electoral Act 1907.   

  

The Chairman may hold office for up to five years and members for up to three years and are eligible to be re-appointed.  A 

member of the Board whose term of office expires shall, unless the office becomes vacant under section 13, continue in office 

until a successor comes into office (Marketing of Potatoes Act 1946, section 12(2)).   

  

Upon commencement of their term, Board members are given an Induction Manual that outlines the role and responsibilities of 

the Board.  When appointed to the Board, members undertake a solemn obligation to carry out their duties in a fair, open, honest 

and accountable way to the benefit of the Corporation and the community they serve. 

Overview 
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In carrying out its role, the Board is subject to the provisions of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996 which 

requires members to act honestly, exercise reasonable care and diligence and not make improper use of information or its position.           

 

Overview 

 

The primary role of the Board is to: 

Set performance goals and risk agenda 

Ensure corporate compliance and management accountability 

Set strategic directions and endorse strategic plans 

Approve operating budgets 

Ensure that the Corporation has the resources necessary to achieve goals,    

monitor progress and report on outcomes  
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Board Profiles 

Mr Herbert (Bert) Russell (Chairman)  

Mr Russell is a commercial producer of potatoes with over fifty years of industry experience and was re-appointed to the Board in 
September 2004.  Mr Russell was appointed to the position of Chairman in February 2006.   
 
Mr Russell is a former President of the Potato Growers Association of WA (PGA) and member of the Agricultural Produce       
Committee (APC) Potato Producers’ Committee.  Mr Russell’s term expires in May 2015. 

Overview 

Ms Leslie Chalmers 

Ms Leslie Chalmers was appointed to the Board in January 2010.   
Ms Chalmers holds a Bachelor of Business and a Postgraduate Diploma in Accounting.  Currently, Ms Chalmers is the sole         
director of the Productive Edge, a Management Consulting practice with operations in Sydney and Perth.   
 
Her current professional appointments include Director, Animal Research Centre, Director and Secretary, Advanced Personnel 
Management, Glycosynnovations Pty Ltd and TALC Ltd. She has also been responsible for or worked as a member of specially 
formed teams on a variety of assignments in the Management Consulting, Business Recovery and Insolvency areas. Ms Chalmers’ 
term expires in January 2015. 

Dr Ronald (Ron) Edwards  

Dr Edwards was appointed to the Board in June 2013.   Dr Edwards  holds a Bachelor of Economics from the University of     
Western Australia, a Master of Education with honours from the University of Sydney and a Doctor of Education from the            
University of Western Australia.  
   
Dr Edwards brings experience from working with primary and resource based industries and ministerial offices from his recent role 
of Chair of the Rock Lobster Industry Advisory Committee and his current professional appointments as a Board member at    
Goldcorp (incorporating the Perth Mint), Council member for the Anglican Schools Commission and founding Board Member of the 
Graham (Polly) Farmer Foundation.  Dr Edwards is also a business consultant providing a range of consultancy                          
services. Dr Edwards term expires in May 2015. 
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Overview 

Mr Darryl Smith 

Mr Smith was elected to the Board in September 2007 for an initial term of three years.   
 
Mr Smith has been growing potatoes for over thirty years. Mr Smith is a past member of the APC Potato Producers’ Committee.  
He is also a former President of the Potato Growers Association of Western Australia.  
 
Mr Smith’s term expires in September 2016. 

Mr Greg Starkie  

Mr Starkie was elected to the Board in October 2006.   
 
Mr Starkie has been growing potatoes for over forty years.  His family has a long history in the industry.  
 
Mr Starkie’s term expires in September 2015. 

Ms Annemie McAuliffe 

Ms McAuliffe was appointed to the Board in March 2006.  
  
Ms McAuliffe holds a Bachelor of Arts, Masters Preliminary in Classics and a Postgraduate Diploma of Education from the  
University of Western Australia. She has also completed a Masters of Library and Information Science at Monash University.   
 
Ms McAuliffe has worked locally and abroad. Her most recent position was Acting Director, Public Sector Telecommunications 
Strategy for the WA Department of Premier and Cabinet. Prior to and subsequent to this role, Ms McAuliffe works as a  
Management Consultant providing a broad range of consultancy services including strategic planning, business planning and  
performance assessment to the Government and private sector.  
 
Ms McAuliffe’s term expires in May 2015. 
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Board Meeting Attendance and Fees 

Fees for Board members are determined by the Department of Premier and Cabinet and paid monthly.   

Board members are reimbursed if travel, accommodation, telephone and motor vehicle expenses are incurred while on official 

business. 

A total of 13 Board meetings were held during the past year. Board member attendance to these meetings was as follows: 

 

 
Meetings attended while in Office 

(2013/2014) 
 

Meetings attended while in Office 
(2012/2013) 

Fees Paid  
($)

(b)
 

Mr Bert Russell 
 

13 12 $46,336.00 

Dr Ron Edwards 
 

12 1
(a)

 $16,350.00 

Mr Darryl Smith 
 

13 11 $25,014.00 

Mr Greg Starkie 
 

9 12 $22,072.00 

Ms Annemie McAuliffe 
 

13 10 $17,680.00 

Ms Leslie Chalmers 
 

11 12 $17,277.00 

Overview 

(a) Dr Ron Edwards was appointed to the board in June 2013 and replaced Mr Eddie Atchison. 

(b) Excludes board fees paid to Mr Eddie Atchison. 
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Senior Officers 

Chief Executive Officer 
 
Peter Evans joined the PMC as Acting Chief Executive Officer in June 2012, coming to the PMC from a CEO role in the private  
sector. Peter has a diverse range of management experience in the public sector, the Australian Defence Force, academe and the 
private sector. He is a Member of the Australian Institute of Management and the Australian Institute of Company Directors.   
 
Peter is a graduate of the University of Western Australia holding a Bachelor of Arts (Economics) degree and has undertaken  
Post-Graduate studies in Business Administration. 
 
Peter was officially appointed as Chief Executive Officer in August 2013. 

Chief Operating Office 

Tim Cusack joined the PMC in October 2012 in the newly created role of Chief Operating Officer.  

Tim has over 20 years’ experience with some of Australia’s largest agricultural food businesses including George Weston Foods,  
Arnotts Biscuits, Fonterra/Brownes and Lion Nathan. Over this period he has worked in manufacturing, supply chain, change       
management and general management roles.  
 
Tim holds a Bachelor of Economics from the University of Sydney. 

Chief Financial Officer 
 
Stan Boczar joined the PMC in January 2014 as Chief Financial Officer on a permanent basis, after taking over from Adrian Byrne 
who held the position on a contract basis until December 2013. 
 
Stan has over 20 years experience in the Manufacturing and Aviation industries with large organisations such as Amcor and Qantas 
in a variety of Commercial and Financial managerial roles.  
 
Stan holds a Bachelor of Accountancy from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology and is a fully qualified CPA. 

Overview 
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Other Key Legislation Impacting on the Corporation’s Activities 

In the performance of its functions, the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia complies with the following relevant 

legislation: 

Auditor General Act 2006 
A New Tax System (Goods and Services 
Tax) Act 1999 

Debits Tax Act 1990 

Disability Services Act 1993 Electoral Act 1907 Equal Opportunity Act 1984 

Financial Management Act 2006 Financial Institutions Duty Act 1993 Freedom of Information Act 1992 

Fringe Benefits Assessment Act 1986  Government Employees Superannuation 
Act 1987 

Industrial Relations Act 1979 

Industrial Relations Reform Act 1993 
Library Board of Western Australia Act 
1951 

Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 
1993  

Occupational Health and Safety Welfare 
Act 1984 

Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 Public Sector Management Act 1994 

Sales Tax Assessment Act 1992 State Records Act 2000 
Statutory Corporations (Liability of       
Directors) Act 1996 

Trade Practices Act 1974 
Workers’ Compensation and Assistance 
Act 1981 

Fair Work Act 2009 

Overview 
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In the financial administration of the Corporation, we have complied with the requirements of the Financial Management Act 

2006 and every other relevant written law, and exercised controls which provide reasonable assurance that the receipt and   

expenditure of moneys, the acquisition and disposal of public property and incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 

legislative provisions. 

At the date of signing we were not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars in this statement misleading 

or inaccurate.  

Herbert Russell  
Chairman 
 
Date: 15 September 2014  

Stan Boczar  
Chief Financial Officer 
 
Date: 15 September 2014 

Overview 
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Government Goal – Financial and Economic Responsibility 

Responsibly managing the State’s finances through the efficient and effective delivery of services, encouraging 
economic activity and reducing regulatory burdens on the private sector. 
The Corporation’s primary service aligns closely with this Government goal. 

Primary service provided by the Corporation:  Effective regulation of ware potato production and supply in Western 
Australia for the benefit of the public. 

 The Corporation receives no capital or recurrent Government funding. 

 Growers are assured of fair payment for all deliveries of ware potatoes. 

 The Corporation does not regulate the supply of potatoes for seed, processing and export. 

1.5 Performance Management Framework 

 

Government Goal – Outcomes Based Service Delivery 

Greater focus on achieving results in key service delivery areas for the benefit of all Western Australians. 
The Corporation’s primary outcome aligns closely with this Government goal. 

Primary outcome of the Corporation: The quantity and variety of quality freshly harvested ware potatoes supplied 
meets the demand of the State’s consumers for 12 months of the year.  

Government Goal – Results-based Service Delivery 

Greater focus on achieving results in key service delivery areas for the benefit of all Western Australians. 
The Corporation’s primary service aligns closely with this Government goal. 

Primary service provided by the Corporation:  Effective regulation of ware potato production and supply in Western 
Australia for the benefit of the public. 

Overview 
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Government Goal – Stronger Focus on the Regions 

Greater focus on service delivery, infrastructure investment and economic development to improve the overall 
quality of life in remote and regional areas.  
The Corporation’s primary service aligns closely with this Government goal. 

Primary service provided by the Corporation:   

 A high proportion of grower payments is spent in regional economies on production inputs, farm labour and transport 
services. 

 The Corporation is strongly committed to diversifying supply to new areas, such as Dandaragan/Gingin/Lancelin. 

 

Government Goal – Social and Environmental Responsibility 

Ensuring that economic activity is managed in a socially and environmentally responsible manner for the     
long-term benefit of the State. 
The Corporation’s primary service aligns closely with this Government goal. 

Primary service provided by the Corporation:   
 Supply management of potatoes for the domestic market helps to eliminate overproduction, hence avoiding the 

wastage of inputs (fertilisers, chemicals, energy and water for irrigation) and harmful environment impacts. 
 The Corporation is strongly committed to the sustainable development of the potato industry. 

Changes to Outcome Based Management Framework 

The Corporation’s Outcome Based Management Framework did not change during 2013/2014. 

Shared Responsibilities with Other Agencies 

The Corporation did not share any responsibilities with other agencies in 2013/2014. 

Overview 
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 Section 2 - Agency Performance 

2.1 Overall Performance 

The 2013/14 year proved again challenging for the industry with ambient weather conditions, particularly through the summer period, 
impacting both quality and production volume. Notwithstanding these challenges, a renewed focus on realising value for impaired   
product enabled higher pool revenues, particularly in Pools 3 and 4.  Another year on year reduction in nil value product was recorded, 
with almost all product being sent to market, including a once-off opportunity to supply the Eastern States with volume due to a      
shortage of supply. 
 
The Operations team continued its focus on Quality and Supply. Pack out accuracy was once again a concentrated focus, with the   
significant level of detailed analysis of selected consignments from growers.  

Agency Performance  

The Corporation is funded by growers (no funding is provided by the Government for recurrent or capital expenditure) and 
operates on a profit neutral basis 
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During this year, less imports were received from the Eastern States. Continued ‘import               

replacement’ remains a key objective of our focus on improving quality and supply reliability. Part of 

the newly defined Quality Improvement Plan is to hold detailed discussions on Pool performance 

with growers delivering below par performances each quarter. 

The Sales and Operations Planning process has improved our engagement and communication 

with critical stakeholders, including retail chain customers, our Merchants and strategic category 

and sales plans. This process is greatly assisting in improving the accuracy of our supply planning 

process, including support for transitioning to new yellow flesh and other developmental potato    

varieties. 

A trial was conducted in Pool 4 that investigated and researched cool storing properties of potatoes 

which may be used in the future during traditional periods of short supply and poor quality. 

Agency Performance  

The focus on Quality & Supply has created a higher level of confidence in the integrity of the PMC grading standards 
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2.2 Financial Targets 

Agency Performance  

  
Target 

(1)
 Actual 

(2)
 Variance Variance (%) 

Domestic Sales (Tonnes) 58,555 
(3)

 54,671 -3,884 -6.6% 

Sales Revenue ($) 38,312,720 35,566,470 -2,746,249 -7.2% 

Corporations Services Costs ($) 4,875,042 4,932,495 -57,453 -1.2% 

Cost of Sales ($) 33,476,641 31,019,014 2,457,627 7.3% 

(1) As specified in Budget Statement for 2013-14. 
(2) Actual results from the 2013-14 Financial Statements and Notes to the Financial Statements. 
(3) This target was an aspirational one and there was a real increase in tonnage delivered year on year. 
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2.3 Summary of Key Performance Indicators 

Additional information on KPIs is provided in Section 4 of this report. 

Agency Performance  

1.  Effectiveness 2013-14 Target 2013-14 Actual Variation Note Number 

1.1  The extent to which the Corporation aligned domestic       

       production levels with local (ware market) demand. 

100% 97.0% -3.0% 1 

1.2  The extent to which the Corporation provides varieties             

       to the domestic market. 
 

36 35 -1 2 

Explanatory Notes: 

1. The Corporation aims to maintain a variance of within ± 5% of the local ware market demand.  The Corporation’s result is 

satisfactory given several climatic factors outside the Corporation’s control and the level of imports into the WA market. 

2. A number of varieties were sold through the year, reflecting continued focus on variety development especially with yellow 

flesh cultivars. Volumes produced for these new varieties will rise sharply over the coming years as the major chain retailers 

transition the potato category to this potato type. Some varieties are only available for limited times on limited quantities and 

are not suitable to be commercially produced in WA’s growing conditions throughout the entire year. 
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Explanatory Notes: 

3. Corporation services costs are based on actual services costs of $4,932,495 and actual gross tonnes of 54,671.  The result 

being $90.22 per tonne and greater than prior year results however this can be solely attributed to the first full year of the         

marketing campaign. These marketing activities were budgeted at approximately $1.9m for the 2014 year and actual spend has 

been in line with this target.  

4. The Corporation makes payments to growers on a weekly basis and consistently within the 14 allowable days for all first      

payments. 

 

2.  Efficiency 2013-14 Target 2013-14 Actual Variation Note Number 

2.1  Corporation services costs 
(1)

 per tonne of production. 

 

$83.26 $90.22 -$6.97 3 

2.3  Maintaining 1st payments to growers within  

       acceptable credit terms.                
 

14 days 11.6 days 2.4 days 4 

(1) “Services Costs” is defined as all administrative and operational overheads incurred in regulating the supply of potatoes in the State and administering the Act. 

 

Agency Performance  
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2.4 Report on Operations 

Highlights 

 Over the past year underlying production was 54,671T delivering year on year growth of 6.6%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 A comprehensive compliance program has been established with the Agents to improve the accuracy and transparency of  

      potato grading. The program now includes detailed quantitative review of the grading accuracy of selected consignments,  

      random audits of pack out documentation submitted by Agents, and general inspection activities.  

 

 The PMC has facilitated several development activities targeted at establishing best agricultural practice for potato growers. 

This work included an Irrigation Field Day and Soil Health Improvement Workshops sponsored by the Manjimup Pemberton  

Potato Growers group.  

Agency Performance  

  Class 1 Class 2 Smalls Waste Soil 
Unsaleable 

Smalls 

2013-14 40.4% 26.4% 13.8% 12.1% 2.2% 2.1% 

2012-13 40.2% 26.6% 14.8% 11.3% 2.2% 2.3% 

2011-12 41.0% 26.4% 15.4% 11.7% 2.3% 1.9% 

2010-11 40.7% 27.2% 14.4% 12.7% 2.4% 1.5% 
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 New ware potato growers have entered the system over the past year and invested new capital to develop the industry. We are 

pleased that former potato growing locations have been re-established at North Pinjarra and Waroona. 

 

 Re-engaging with the food service and restaurant industry via the ‘Potatodor’ program identified the opportunity for ‘mini 

Kipflers’. New grading equipment has been installed at a key growing location to support this initiative. 

 

 Variety trials were completed successfully for Sifra (white skin, cream flesh) and Mozart (red skin, yellow flesh) during the year. 

The Board approved an investment in minituber stock that will support the growth of these new varieties in future seasons.    

Other development varieties, including Maranca, are now in the early stages of assessment. 

 

 A new Wash Pack facility at Dandaragan was commissioned during the year, enabling washing closure to farm. This initiative 

further delivers on the quality improvement recommendations of the McKinna review. Galati Group commissioned a new     

packing shed and cool storage in Myalup for potatoes and other vegetables. 

       

 For the first time in several years, WA ware potatoes were exported to SA during the summer months. 

 

 The Board has invested in building the capability of the Operations team through training events including improving their skills 

at partnering with growers, understanding key drivers of soil health and soil management practices, and seed potato tuber  

analysis training. 

Agency Performance  
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 A core focus of the Operations team has been continuing the process of modernising the ware potato supply chain. Key  

      initiatives include: 

 

 Summer Harvest Seed Protocol implemented with the WA Seed Potato Producers (WASPP) to improve the efficiency and   

quality of seed supply from seed growers to ware growers. 

 

 Minimal product dumpings following greater focus on selling through to the market all deliveries into the system. 

 

 Increased sales of coloured small potatoes to reduce waste. 

 

 New Grower Benchmark reporting process reviewing supply and quality performance one on one with growers. 

 

 Successfully trialled cool storing of Royal Blue during favourable growing periods to ensure marketplace continuity during the 

early winter period. 

 

Agency Performance  
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2013/2014 Challenges 

 Some significant crop failures occurred in Myalup due to 

lack of timely rainfall events pre and post planting, which   

impacted both yield and quality of deliveries in July and    

August. 

 Very difficult initial growing conditions resulting from excess 

rainfall and cold temperatures, impacted first planting 

(September) in Manjimup and Pemberton. This ultimately 

impacted product quality through presentation of internal  

defects across some varieties during December to March 

deliveries. 

 Ongoing challenges with Royal Blue internal defects and  

deletion from Coles during the summer. 

 General market requirement for attaining blemish free skin 

finish through all soil types and growing conditions remains 

a key challenge for the industry. A comprehensive quality 

improvement plan is being implemented to assist growers in 

meeting those challenges and this plan remains a key focus 

of day to day activities of the operations team.  

Agency Performance  
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 An investment in new mini tuber stock was approved with the goal of ensuring that seed is available to support a major      

transition in volume from Nadine to customer preferred yellow flesh varieties. 

 There was a reduction in stock written off at nil value to the Pools. This continues the effort to maximise the sale of product 

through all available sales channels. Import volumes continued to decline due to temporary supply restrictions. 

Potato Import Data Comparison 

Agency Performance  
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Key Initiatives 

In conjunction with Potato Research WA a range of initiatives is being 

implemented to support growers in raising overall quality of the annual 

potato crop. 

Agency Performance  

 Engagement with Growers 

 Partnering with the Manjimup Pemberton Grower Group to assist them in their quality improvement work. 

 PMC led a tour of the Tasmanian potato industry by 12 growers from the Manjimup Pemberton, Busselton and Myalup regions. 

 Undertaking detailed performance reviews of each Pool at industry meetings through each of the key regions. 

 Regular newsletter information on current performance, issues, and industry information. 

 Quality Improvement Program 

 Crop Testing to assist in the identification and eradication of virus  

infected ware crops. 

 Engagement with agronomists consulting to the industry to highlight 

challenges and share key learnings as each season progresses. 

 Focus on improving seed handling and storage to optimise its     

physiological age. 

 New DME and Seed licence conditions promoting and underwriting 

agronomy best practice. 

 Building new database to identify optimum nutrient values to assist 

growers in improving crop management through the growing cycle. 
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Marketing 

The PMC is charged with category marketing and promotion to support demand for 

fresh ware potatoes in Western Australia.  

The activities undertaken are:  

 generic marketing to support category growth and development 

 tactical marketing to support individual product initiatives 

 market tracking to monitor market pricing and product ranges 

 Generic Marketing Campaign Objectives 

Fresh potato consumption per capita in Western Australia has declined by 20% 

over the last decade, WA growers committed to investing in a category marketing 

campaign to stop this decline and increasing consumption per capita of fresh      

potatoes.  

Agency Performance  

The implementation of an industry wide Sales and Operations Planning process,  

together with an increased focus on demand and supply in the market place, has improved  

efficiency and reduced industry costs  
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 Campaign Overview  

The ‘Serve Up Some Goodness’ seeks to inspire potato consumption through: 

 Reinforcing the taste attributes of potatoes with great tasting, simple recipes, hints and tips, backed with stunning visual graphics 

and cinematography.  

 Removing barriers to consumption by addressing perceived consumer concerns of healthiness and inconvenience.  

A new brand (Fresh Potatoes) has been created to signpost the category. It is complemented by the Buy West Eat Best symbol 

which is used to signpost the WA origin of the product. The campaign has required the production of a suite of creative materials   

including new recipes, television, digital radio and print adverts and a world class website.  

The major features of the campaign to date have been: 

 Television advertising - this high repetition strategy has been designed to create a change in the way consumers perceive           

potatoes.  

 Print advertising - used tactically, adverts have been used to support specific marketing themes during the year. This included the 

conversion of Fresh (the food section of “The West Australian”) to a potato edition to launch the campaign.  

 Cinema advertising - this reached 210,000 cinema goers during the Christmas holiday period biggest blockbusters.  
 

 Radio advertising - 10 x 1 minute commercials have been produced and used in regional areas to support key health themes.  
 

 Digital advertising - around 20% of the advertising budget has been spent on the placement of digital adverts. These were placed 
on lifestyle food sites, news sites and display sites.  

 

 

Agency Performance  
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 Social media - over 3500 users permanently engaged through interesting recipes, fortnightly e-newsletters and potato facts.  
 
 Royal Show - over 22,000 children dug potatoes at the specially designed potato stand. The stand was featured in a live cross to 

Channel 7 and was complemented by cooking demonstrations from potato expert Dale Sniffen.  
 

 Foodservice Education - more Potatodors (Potato Chef Ambassadors) have been appointed to represent the potato industry to 
their fellow chefs. The foodservice program uses these high profile and influential chefs to target key messages across the sector.          

 
 Seed for Schools - over 350 schools and early learning centres registered to be involved in the program that takes classes through 

a potato growing cycle from planting to harvest.  
 
 Parliament House event - staged in June, this highly successful event showcased the WA industry, varieties and potato recipes to 

the State’s political leaders. 
 

 Campaign Results 

To date the available consumer results have been the quarterly household tracking measures. The statistics reveal that: 

 Consumers are purchasing a larger volume of potatoes on a weekly basis (compared to the same time periods 1 year ago). This is 

a function of increased numbers of households purchasing potatoes and/or increased volume of potatoes being purchased in each 

transaction.  

 Consumers are spending more per kilo on potato purchases. This reflects a transition to better tasting branded product lines that 

are sold at a higher price.  

This has translated to real demonstrable results to growers. with a sustained growth in the WA Fresh Ware Potato Industry. Sales 

growth is a result of better use of produced product, increases in quality and the demand created by the category marketing campaign.  

During the same time period there has been a material change to total market size (measured by PMC sales and total imports to WA). 

A declining market (2012-2013) has been put back into growth (2013-2014) by the major grower investment in a category marketing 

campaign.   

Agency Performance  
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 Tactical Marketing 

The PMC supported the launch of several products to assist with the category growth strategy. This included: 

 Karri Country Potatoes. Co-branded with the Southern Forest Food Council, this product was launched in the independent trade. 

Despite eventually securing distribution and merchandising in over 60 stores, the product rate of sale did not materialise.  

 Mini Kipfler. Based on demand from chefs, a Mini Kipfler product was developed and marketed into the top end restaurants.          

A niche product line, it is servicing the demands of the market.  

 Market Tracking  

The PMC tracks market pricing and promotional programs locally and interstate. This ensures that prices are kept competitive in       

relation to local and national markets. Category tracking also assists with idea generation for category development.  

 

Agency Performance  

Westfield Innaloo
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Compliance 

 A thorough review of the PMC’s compliance activities was completed, resulting in a new process to validate the efficiency of 

potato grading (pack out) practices operated by our Agents. At the centre of this approach is completing a very detailed 

qualitative and quantitative assessment of randomly selected ‘Designated Consignments’. This has been implemented with 

the active support of both growers and Agents. 

 The volume of ‘contract’ potatoes delivered to our Agents has declined significantly as a result of three of four merchants 

not trading in this class of potato. Processes have been established to ensure that DME growers are not disadvantaged 

where contract potatoes are being received into the Agent’s premises. 

 

Agency Performance  

WA has the lowest average retail pricing of all the five mainland 

states regularly tracked 
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 Section 3 - Significant Issues Impacting the Agency 

Pricing 

Production Costs 

In 2013/2014, Acil Allen were awarded a contract to analyse the industry’s cost of production and recommended grower pool prices. This 

analysis was completed from an improved and more appropriate grower sample that better represents the average efficient grower.      

Although competitive pressures are key, the Corporation takes account of the cost pressures faced by growers to provide reasonable    

opportunities for growers to make an adequate return from efficient production. This information is used in the decision making process 

with regard to recommended pricing as required under the Act. 

Significant Issues Impacting the Agency 

 Independent market research from one of Australia’s leading FMCG research agencies continues to confirm that regulation of ware 

potatoes in Western Australia does not result in any price disadvantage to consumers.  The latest data shows that WA had the lowest 

average potato retail pricing nationally throughout 2013/2014. 

 The Corporation continues to promote new product lines in conjunction with its agents, reviewing its grading standards to investigate            

opportunities for additional value creation. The consolidation of its Supply and Operational Planning process provided improved     

supply chain input into all pricing decisions and reviews. 
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Significant Issues Impacting the Agency 

Grower Profitability 

 For some growers profitability remains constrained by quality issues. 

 Cost of production inputs are also of concern to the Corporation, as they continue to increase given that Western         

Australia’s particular climate and soil conditions often require additional inputs.  While the Corporation aims to provide   

adequate returns to growers, this is increasingly challenging given input cost pressures combined with retail price trends. 

 The Corporation continues to assist growers in increasing profitability including the utilisation of Potato Research WA to 

focus on quality, variety, yield and disease work on behalf of the industry. 

 Continued improvement in yield and quality levels is required from growers in order to remain competitive and profitable 

and the Corporation continues to drive these initiatives and work with the grower group. 

Varieties 

 Retailers continue to push for significant change in varieties to align their category development platform.  Yellow Flesh 

varieties continue to be demanded and are likely to displace White varieties as the major category grown within the next   

3-5 years. 

 The Corporation is working cooperatively with retailers, wash packers and growers on a Variety Transition Plan to meet 

the requirement and to ensure the channels to market are created for the most promising varieties.  This transition is     

underway with the Corporation continuing its commitment to purchase minitubers. 

 Commercial trials continue to be established and developed in all production areas.  The Corporation maintains its strong 

commitment to the collection of End Point Royalties (EPR) in order to protect the rights of existing holders of Plant    

Breeder's Rights (PBR) but to also create a platform for the introduction of new varieties. 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

4.1 Financial Statements 

Certification of Financial Statements 

For the year ended 30 June 2014 

 

The accompanying financial statements of the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia have been prepared in 
compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly 
the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and the financial position as at 30 June 2014. 

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial 
statements misleading or inaccurate. 

H Russell  
Chairman 
15 September 2014 

A McAuliffe 
Board Member 
15 September 2014 

S Boczar 
Chief Financial Officer 
15 September 2014 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Statement of Comprehensive Income - for the year ended 30 June 2014 

 The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Note 2014 2013 
    $ $ 

Income:    

 Revenue    

 Sales 6 35,566,470 36,628,951 

 Interest revenue 7 81,257 147,384 

 Other revenue 8 219,833 147,487 

 Total Income  35,867,560 36,923,822 

    

 Expenses:    

 Cost of sales 6 31,019,014 34,152,314 

 Employee benefits expense 9 1,692,932 1,645,496 

 Supplies and services 10 2,675,298 927,940 

 Depreciation and amortisation expense 11 33,009 8,128 

 Administration expenses 12 210,650 173,995 

 Accommodation expenses 13 133,708 176,980 

 Other expenses 14 186,898 61,995 

 Total Expenses  35,951,509 37,146,849 

      

 Profit/(loss) before allocation to Grower Reserve Fund  -83,949 -223,027 

 Allocation (to)/from Grower Reserve Fund as per Marketing of Potatoes Act 1946  216,741 -257,535 

 Profit/(loss) before grants and subsidies from State Government  132,792 -480,562 

    

 Profit/(loss) for the Period  132,792 -480,562 

    

 Other Comprehensive Income:    

 Changes in asset revaluation reserve  0 0 

 Total other Comprehensive Income  0 0 

    

 Total Comprehensive Income for the Period  132,792 -480,562 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Statement of Financial Position - as at 30 June 2014 

 The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Note 2014 2013 
    $ $ 

Assets:    

 Current Assets    

 Cash and cash equivalents 25 2,737,598 4,011,634 

 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 15 18,750 18,750 

 Receivables 16 1,911,106 1,529,858 

Total Current Assets  4,667,454 5,560,242 

 Non-Current Assets    

 Property, plant and equipment 18 3,707,547 3,720,531 

 Investment Property 18 391,700 391,700 

 Total Non-Current Assets  4,099,247 4,112,231 

 Total Assets  8,766,701 9,672,473 

Liabilities:    

 Current Liabilities    

 Payables 21 433,546 1,388,748 

 Provisions 22 116,079 128,775 

 Other current liabilities 23 3,102,257     2,987,608 

 Total Current Liabilities  3,651,882 4,505,131 

 Non-Current Liabilities    

 Provisions 22 67,540 36,115 

 Total Non-Current Liabilities  67,540 36,115 

Total Liabilities  3,719,422 4,541,246 

Net Assets:       5,047,279 5,131,227 

 Equity: 24   

 Contributed equity  710,000 710,000 

 Asset Revaluation Reserve  3,305,885 3,305,885 

 Grower Reserve Fund  1,361,938 1,578,679 

 Retained earnings  -330,544 -463,336 

 Total Equity  5,047,279 5,131,227 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Statement of Changes in Equity - for the year ended 30 June 2014 

       

 The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read  Note Contributed  Asset  Grower Accumulated  Total 
 in conjunction with the accompanying notes.   Equity Reserves Reserves Surplus/(deficit) Equity 

  $ $ $ $ $ 
 

      

Balance at 1 July 2012:  710,000 3,305,885 1,321,144 17,226 5,354,255 

Changes in accounting policy or correction of        

prior period errors       

 Balance at 1 July 2012   710,000 3,305,885 1,321,144 17,226 5,354,255 

Surplus / (deficit)     -480,562 -480,562 

Gains / (losses) from asset revaluations      0 

Contributions by growers    755,342  755,342 

Distributions to growers     -497,807   -497,807 

Total  0  0 257,535 -480,562 -223,027 

Balance at 30 June 2013  24 710,000 3,305,885 1,578,679 -463,336 5,131,227 

Balance at 1 July 2013:  710,000 3,305,885 1,578,679 -463,336 5,131,227 

       

Surplus / (deficit)     132,792 132,792 
Gains / (losses) from asset revaluations      0 

Contributions by growers    712,856  712,856 

Distributions to growers    -929,597  929,597 
Total  0 0  -216,741 132,792 -83,949 

Balance at 30 June 2014  24 710,000 3,305,885 1,361,938 -330,544 5,047,279 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Statement of Cash Flows - for the year ended 30 June 2014 

 The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Note 2014 2013 
    $ $ 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:    

 Receipts    

Sale of goods and services  35,215,235 36,853,613 

Interest received  81,257 147,384 

GST receipts on sales  382,352 103,164 

Other receipts  216,903 147,487 

    

 Payments:    

Employee benefits  -1,690,264 -1,817,121 

Supplies and services  -2,675,298 -927,940 

Administration expenses  -233,233 -173,995 

Accommodation expenses  -133,708 -176,980 

Other Expenses  -186,898 -61,995 

GST payments on purchases  -341,691 -16,539 

Other payments  -31,891,597 -33,221,438 

    

 Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 25 -1,256,941 855,640 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:    

Purchase of non-current physical assets  -33,231 -17,200 

Proceeds from asset disposals  16,136 0 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities  -17,095 -17,200 

    

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:  0 0 

 Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities  0 0 

    

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  -1,274,036 838,440 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period   4,030,384 3,191,944 

Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the Period 25 2,756,348  4,030,384 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Notes to the Financial Statements - for the year ended 30 June 2014 

Note 1: Australian Accounting Standards 

General 

The Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 have been prepared in accordance with Australian             

Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian Accounting Standards’ includes Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian       

Accounting Standard Board (AASB). 

The Authority has adopted any applicable, new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their operative dates. 

 

Early adoption of standards 

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of       

Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting     

Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the Authority for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 

2014. 

Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies 

(a) General statement 

The Authority is a not for profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in accordance with Australian 

Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB 

as applied by the Treasurer's instructions.  Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's instructions to vary application,        

disclosure, format and wording. 

The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer's instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the preparation of        

financial statements and take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting    

Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB. 

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that            

modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

 
(b) Basis of preparation  
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, except for land, 
buildings and infrastructure which have been measured at fair value. 
 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods 
presented unless otherwise stated. 
 
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar ($). 
Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have been made in the process 
of applying the Authority’s accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial           
statements. 
 
Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of       
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
 
(c) Reporting entity 
The reporting entity comprises the Authority only.  
 
(d) Contributed equity 
AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires transfers in the nature of 
equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the 
owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions.  
Capital appropriations have been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned 
Public Sector Entities and have been credited directly to Contributed equity. 
 
The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, are            
designated as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal. 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

(e) Income  

Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. The following specific recognition       
criteria must be also met before revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows: 

Sale of goods 

Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership    
transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably. 

Provision of services 

Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. 

Interest 

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues. 

Rental income 

Rental income arising on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term, recognised as income     
in the periods in which it is earned. 

Gains 

Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These include gains arising on the disposal of non-current     
assets and some revaluations of non-current assets 

 

(f) Income tax 
 
The Authority is exempt from Income Tax. 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

 
(g) Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 
 
Capitalisation/expensing of assets 
 
Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising   
assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives.  Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing less than 
$5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of 
similar items which are significant in total). 
The Authority does not have infrastructure. 
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
 
Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost. 
For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of acquisition. 
 
Subsequent measurement  
 
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and buildings and historical 
cost for all other property, plant and equipment.  Land and buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation (buildings 
only) and accumulated impairment losses. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less              
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current market buying   
values determined by reference to recent market transactions. When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market             
transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated 
to the revalued amount. 
 
In the absence of market-based evidence, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use.  This normally 
applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted.  Fair value for existing use assets is determined by reference 
to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, ie. the depreciated replacement cost.  Where 
the fair value of buildings is determined on the depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated 
depreciation are restated proportionately. 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

 
Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services) and 
recognised annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset’s fair value at the end of the reporting 
period. 
 
The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and 
in determining estimated useful life. Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear    
distinction between market type assets and existing use assets. 
 
Investment property 
 
Investment property comprises freehold buildings not occupied by the Authority and used for rental yields. TI 954 requires investment 
property to be carried at fair value, usually represented by open-market valuations as provided by Valuation Services. Revaluation   
increments are reflected in the Income Statement.  
 
De-recognition 
Upon disposal or de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure, any revaluation surplus relating to that 
asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus. 
 
Asset revaluation surplus 
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets as described      
in note 18 ‘Property, plant and equipment’. 
 
Depreciation 
 
The Authority does not have any Intangible Assets. 
Land is not depreciated.  Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually.   
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Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 

 

 

 

(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware 
 
(h) Impairment of assets 
 
Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each     
reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the recoverable amount is 
less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss 
is recognised.  As the Authority is a not for profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount 
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 
 
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, where the         
replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life.  Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to 
verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the asset’s future economic 
benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs. 
 
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at the end of 
each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment. 
 
The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the present value of    
future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.  
 

Buildings 20 years 

Plant and equipment 5 years 

Office equipment 5 years 

Mobile equipment 10 years 

Office furniture 10 years 

Field equipment 10 years 

Computer equipment - including software 
(a)

 3 years 

Investment property Nil 
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Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market-based 
evidence.  Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and 
the recoverable amount is measured.  Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting      
period. 
 
Refer to note 20 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing. 
Refer also to note 2(m) ‘Receivables’ and note 16 ‘Receivables’ for impairment of receivables. 
 
(i) Financial Instruments  
 
In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the Authority has three categories of financial instrument: 
·         Loans and receivables; 
·         Held-to-maturity investments (commercial bills and term deposits); and 
·         Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 
Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes: 
·         Financial Assets 
-         Cash and cash equivalents 
-         Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
-         Receivables 
-         Commercial bills 
-         Term deposits 
·         Financial Liabilities 
-         Payables 
-         Bank overdraft 
-         WATC/Bank borrowings 
-         Finance lease liabilities 
-         Amounts due to the Treasurer 
 
Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face 
value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no interest rate         
applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material. 
 
Refer to note 2(n) ‘Investments and other financial costs’. 
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(j) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise 
cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of 
cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.   
 
(k) Accrued salaries 
 
Accrued salaries (refer to note 21 ‘Payables’) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the pay 
date for the last pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year.  Accrued salaries are settled 
within a fortnight of the financial year end.  The Authority considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net 
fair value.  
 
(l) Inventories 
 
Inventories are measured at the net realisable value as they are in the hands of the merchant. Inventories are potatoes delivered to 
the Authority but not yet graded by the merchant. Their cost is measured as the tonnage x current payment rates.  
 
(m)     Receivables 
 
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment).  
The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off against 
the allowance account.  The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the 
Authority will not be able to collect the debts.  The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 14 days.   
 
Refer also to note 2(i) ‘Financial Instruments’ and note 16 ‘Receivables’.  
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(n) Investments and other financial assets 
 
The Authority classifies its investments into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and     
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets.  The classification depends on the purpose for which 
the investments were acquired.  Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this 
designation at the end of each reporting period.  Investments not at fair value are initially recognised at cost being the fair value of             
consideration given, including directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates are classified as held-to-maturity when 
management has a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not 
included in this classification. 
 
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments, such as commercial bills, are subsequently measured at amortised cost    
using the effective interest method.  Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, over 
the period to maturity.  For investments carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. 
 
The Authority assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is 
impaired. 
 
(o) Payables 
 
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Authority becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a      
purchase of assets or services.  The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally settled within 30 days. 
 
Refer to note 2(i) ‘Financial Instruments’ and note 21 ‘Payables’. 
 
(p) Provisions 
 
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation.  Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. 
Refer to note 22 ‘Provisions’. 
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Provisions - employee benefits 
 
All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period. 
 
Annual leave 
 
Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and is therefore considered to 
be ‘other long term employee benefits’.  The annual leave liability is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts        
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 
 
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non salary  
components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of       
service.  The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government 
bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
 
The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer           
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. 
 
Long service leave 
 
Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and is therefore          
recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration 
rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 
 
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non salary  
components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of       
service.  The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government 
bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
 
Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Authority does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Pre-conditional and conditional long service 
leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Authority has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 
liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service. 
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Superannuation 
 
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other funds administer public sector superannuation arrangements in 
Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements.  Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public     
sector employees varies according to commencement and implementation dates. 
 
Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the 
Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members since 1995. 
 
Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became 
non contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).  Employees commencing employment on or after 
16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS).  From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or 
GESBS and new employees became able to choose their preferred superannuation fund.  The Authority makes concurrent             
contributions to GESB or other funds on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation 
Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish the Authority’s liability for                 
superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS. 
 
The Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer benefit for employees who transferred to the GSS are defined benefit schemes.  These 
benefits are wholly unfunded and the liabilities for future payments are provided at the end of the reporting period.  The liabilities under 
these schemes have been calculated separately for each scheme annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method. 
 
The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national     
government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
 
The GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS, where the current service superannuation charge is paid by the Authority to the GESB, are     
defined contribution schemes.  The liabilities for current service superannuation charges under the GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS 
are extinguished by the concurrent payment of employer contributions to the GESB. 
 
The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole of government reporting.  However, from an agency 
perspective, apart from the transfer benefits, it is a defined contribution plan under AASB 119. 
 
Refer to note 2(q) ‘Superannuation expense’. 
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Provisions – other 
 
Employment on-costs 
 
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised separately as       
liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred.  Employment on-costs are included as part of ‘Other 
expenses’ and are not included as part of the Authority’s ‘Employee benefits expense’.  The related liability is included in ‘Employment 
on-costs provision’. 
 
Refer to note 14 ‘Other expenses’ and note 22 ‘Provisions’. 
 
(q) Superannuation expense 
 
The superannuation expense of the defined benefit plans is made up of the following elements: 
 current service cost; 
 interest cost (unwinding of the discount); 
 actuarial gains and losses; and 
 past service cost. 
Actuarial gains and losses of the defined benefit plans are recognised immediately as income or expense in the Statement of       
Comprehensive Income. 
The superannuation expense of the defined contribution plans is recognised as and when the contributions fall due. 
 
Refer to note 2(p) ‘Provisions under Superannuation. 
 
(r) Comparative figures 
 
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the current financial year.  
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Note 3: Judgments made by management in applying accounting policies 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the application of accounting policies that 
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  The Authority evaluates these judgements         
regularly. 
There are no judgements that have been made in the process of applying accounting policies that have had any significant effect 
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

Note 4: Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other factors that have a    
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
 
Long Service Leave 
 
Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Authority’s long service leave provision include expected future salary 
rates, discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments.  Changes in these estimations and assumptions 
may impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave provision. 
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Note 5: Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates 

Initial application of An Australian Accounting Standard 
The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 July 2013 that impacted on the Authority.  

AASB          

13 

Fair Value Measurement 
This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value and requires additional disclosures 
for assets and liabilities measured at fair value.  There is no financial impact.  

AASB          

119 

Employee Benefits. 
This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), making changes to the recognition, presentation and        
disclosure requirements. 
The Authority assessed employee leave patterns to determine whether annual leave is a short-term or other      
long-term employee benefit.  The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities that were previously measured at 
the undiscounted amounts is not material.  
 

AASB     
1048 

Interpretation of Standards 
This Standard supersedes AASB 1048 (June 2012), enabling references to the Interpretations in all other      
Standards to be updated by reissuing the service Standard.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB           
2011-8 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 
101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 
1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132] 
This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in other Australian Accounting Standards 
and Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011. There is no financial impact. 

AASB           
2011-10 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011)[AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 
134, 1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14] 
This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of    
issuing AASB 119 in September 2011. The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities that were previously 
measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material. 
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AASB           
2012-2 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial       
Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132] 
This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include information that will enable users of an     
entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights of 
set-off associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity’s 
financial position.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB           
2012-5 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009-11 Cycle [AASB 1, 
101, 116, 132 & 134 and Int 2] 
This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a consequence 
of the annual improvements process.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB           
2012-6 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition           
Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009 11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8] 
This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 Financial Instruments to 1 January 2015 (instead 
of 1 January 2013).  Further amendments are also made to numerous consequential amendments arising from 
AASB 9 that will now apply from 1 January 2015.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB           
2012-9 

Amendment to AASB 1048 arising from the Withdrawal of Australian Int 1039 
The withdrawal of Int 1039 Substantive Enactment of Major Tax Bills in Australia has no financial impact for the 
Authority during the reporting period and at balance date.  Measurement of tax assets and liabilities continues to 
be measured in accordance with enacted or substantively enacted tax law pursuant to AASB 112.46-47. 

AASB           
2012-10 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and Other Amendments [AASB 1, 5, 7, 
8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 119, 127, 128, 132, 133, 134, 137, 1023, 1038, 1039, 1049 & 2011-7 
and Int 12] 
The Standard introduces a number of editorial alterations and amends the mandatory application date of     
Standards for not-for-profit entities accounting for interests in other entities.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB           
2013-9 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial                
Instruments. 
Part A of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from revisions to the Australian 
Accounting Conceptual Framework for periods ending on or after 20 December 2013.  Other Parts of this     
Standard become operative in later periods.  There is no financial impact for Part A of the Standard. 
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Int 21 Levies 
This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a government levy     
imposed should be recognised.  There is no financial impact for the Authority at reporting date. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB       
9 

Financial Instruments 
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,       
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments. 
The mandatory application date of this Standard was amended to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards. The Authority has not yet determined the        
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB       
10 

Consolidated Financial Statements 
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements and Int 112 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities, introducing a number of changes 
to accounting treatments. 
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and Other Amendments.  
The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Model Authority as it does not   
impact accounting for related bodies and the Authority has no interests in other entities. 

1 Jan 2014 

Voluntary changes in accounting policy 
The Authority has not voluntarily changed any accounting policies in the financial year reported.  
 
Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 
The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of       
Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements.  Consequently, the Authority has not applied early any of the        
following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the Authority.  Where applicable, the Authority 
plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.  
 

Operative for reporting  
Periods beginning on/after: 
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AASB       
11 

Joint Arrangements 
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures,            
introduces new principles for determining the type of joint arrangement that exists, which are more 
aligned to the actual rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. 
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.  
There is no financial impact for the Model Authority as the new standard continues to require the 
recognition of the Authority’s share of assets and share of liabilities for the unincorporated joint    
operation. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB       
12 

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes disclosure requirements in AASB 127          
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128 Investments in Associates and 
AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures. 
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.  
There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB       
14 

Regulatory Deferral Accounts 
The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB       
127 

Separate Financial Statements 
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements removing the consolidation requirements of the earlier standard whilst retaining         
accounting and disclosure requirements for the preparation of separate financial statements.     
Mandatory application was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. There is no         
financial impact. 

1 Jan 2014 
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AASB       
128 

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 
This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing a number of           
clarifications for the accounting treatments of changed ownership interest. 
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.  
The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Model Authority as it does not 
hold investments in associates and the accounting treatments for joint operations is consistent with 
current practice. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB       
1031 

Materiality 
This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing Australian guidance on          
materiality not available in IFRSs and refers to guidance on materiality in other Australian           
pronouncements.  There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB       
1055 

Budgetary Reporting 
This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the general purpose financial statements 
of not-for-profit entities within the General Government Sector. The Authority will be required to   
disclose additional budgetary information and explanations of major variances between actual and 
budgeted amounts, though there is no financial impact. 

1 Jul 2014 

AASB       
2009-11 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 
102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 10 & 12] 
[modified by AASB 2010-7] 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB       
2010-7 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 
3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and 
Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127] 
This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. 
AASB 2012-6 amended the mandatory application date of this Standard to 1 January 2015. The 
Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2015 
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AASB       

2011-7  

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint           
Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 
139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17] 

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance of AASB 10, 
AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates and 
Joint Ventures.  For not-for-profit entities it applies to annual reporting period beginning on or after 
1 January 2014.  The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard.  

1 Jan 2014 

AASB       

2012-3  

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial      
Liabilities [AASB 132] 

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified in    

applying some of the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of “currently has a legally 

enforceable right of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent 

to net settlement.  There is no financial impact.  

1 Jan 2014  

AASB       
2013-3  

Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets.   

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes.  There is no financial impact.  

1 Jan 2014 

AASB       
2013-4 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of 
Hedge Accounting [AASB 139] 

This Standard permits the continuation of hedge accounting in circumstances where a derivative, 

which has been designated as a hedging instrument, is novated from one counterparty to a central 

counterparty as a consequence of laws or regulations.  The Model Authority does not routinely    

enter into derivatives or hedges, therefore there is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2014  
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AASB       
2013-8 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Australian Implementation Guidance for           
Not-for-Profit Entities – Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 & 1049]. 

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance in determining whether a 
not-for-profit entity controls another entity when financial returns are not a key attribute of the      
investor’s relationship.  The Standard has no financial impact in its own right, rather the impact    
results from the adoption of the amended AASB 10. 

1 Jan 2014  

AASB       
2013-9 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards   Conceptual Framework, Materiality and         
Financial Instruments. 

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from the deletion of          
references to AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 
(Part B), and, defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 (Part C).  The application date of 
AASB 9 was subsequently deferred to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1.  The Authority has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9, otherwise there is no financial        
impact for Part B. 

1 Jan 2014 

 

1 Jan 2017  

AASB       
2014-1 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 

The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jul 2014 

1 Jan 2015 

1 Jan 2016 

1 Jan 2018 

Changes in accounting estimates 
There have been no changes in accounting estimates (budget) during the financial year reported.  
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Note 6: Trading profit 

 
2014 2013 

 
 $ $ 

Sales 35,566,470 36,628,951 

Cost of Sales:   

Purchase from Growers 30,065,571 33,647,766 

End Point Royalties 953,443 504,549 

Cost of Goods Sold 31,019,014 34,152,315 

  Trading Profit 4,547,456 2,476,636 

Note 7: Interest revenue. 

 
2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Money Market Deposit 27,396 105,989 

Main Operating  Account 53,861 41,395 

Total: 81,257 147,384 

Note 8: Other revenue. 

 
2014 2013 

 
 $ $ 

Store Rentals 66,698 134,585 

Laboratory Analysis 0 12,100 

Food Services 114,000 0 

Seed Sales 22,999 802 

Asset Sale Proceeds 16,136 0 

Total: 219,833 147,487 
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Note 9: Employee benefits expense  
2014 2013 

 
 $ $ 

Wages and Salaries 
(a)

 1,339,158 1,417,784 

Superannuation – defined contribution plans 
(b)

 146,432 123,327 

Motor Vehicle Expenses 113,211 50,365 

Recruitment 63,012 37,862 

Other Related Expenses 31,119 16,158 

Total: 1,692,932 1,645,496 

Note 10: Supplies and services  2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Consultants and Contractors 631,024 669,850 

Operational Trials 39,742 0 

Marketing 1,931,027 224,099 

Travel 38,645 17,495 

Other 34,860 16,496 

Total: 2,675,298 927,940 

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component, leave entitlements including superannuation contribution component. 
(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State and GESB Super Scheme (contributions paid). 

 
Employment on-costs such as workers’ compensation insurance are included in note 14 ‘Other expenses’.  
 
The employment on-costs liability is included at note 22 ‘Provisions’.  
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Note 11: Depreciation expense 

 2014 2013 

 
 $ $ 

Plant and Equipment 2,051 4,068 

Buildings 17,340 0 

Office Furniture and Fittings 3,170 1,308 

Office and Field Equipment 1,812 2,752 

Computer Equipment 8,636 0 

Total: 33,009 8,128 

Note 12: Administration expenses 
 2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Communication 25,437 13,033 

Consumables 27,628 15,351 

Audit Fees 71,453 56,500 

Insurance 29,445 31,456 

Other 56,687 57,655 

Total: 210,650 173,995 

 2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Equipment – non capital expenditure 
(a)

 80,319 68,455 

Repairs and Maintenance 17,407 60,850 

Cleaning and Security 12,482 27,402 

Gardening 9,912 7,932 

Rates and Utilities 13,589 12,341 

Total: 133,708 176,980 

Note 13: Accommodation expenses 

(a)  includes office relocation expenses 
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Note 14: Other expenses  2014 2013 

 
 $ $ 

Research & Development 164,435 28,685 

Asset Disposals 13,206 0 

Other 9,257 33,310 

Total: 186,898 61,995 

Note 15: Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

 2014 2013 

 
 $ $ 

Bond – DSL 18,750 18,750 

Total: 18,750 30,750 

 2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Current:   

  Trade debtors 1,856,425 1,505,190 

  Prepayments 22,583 0 

                  GST Receivable 32,098 24,668 

Total: 1,911,106 1,529,858 

Note 16: Receivables 

The Authority holds $1,490,000 in bank guarantees and $18,750 in cash bonds as security relating to trade debtors. 
 
Refer to note 2(m) ‘Receivables’ and note 30 ‘Financial Instruments’. 
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Note 17: Investments 

 2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Balance at start of period 640,007 640,007 

Provision for impairment recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 0 0 

Amounts written off during the period 0 0 

Amount recovered during the period 0 0 

Balance at the end of the period: 640,007 640,007 

 2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Non-Current:   

  Investment WPPL 640,007 640,007 

  Impairment (640,007) (640,007) 

Total: 0 0 

Note 18: Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:  

 2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Land   

At fair value 
(a)

 3,600,000 3,600,000 

Accumulated impairment losses 0 0 

Total: 3,600,000 3,600,000 

(a) The Land is owned by the crown and vested in the Authority until 2022. Whilst the Authority has management control they can not dispose or encumber the land.          
The valuation of the land is also reflected in the revaluation reserve.  
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 2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Buildings:   

  At fair value 
(a)

 79,968 79,968 

  Accumulated depreciation -17,340 0 

  Accumulated impairment losses 0 0 

Total: 62,628 79,968 

Plant and Equipment:   

  At cost 24,240 70,425 

  Accumulated depreciation -24,240 -55,168 

Total: 0 15,257 

Office furniture and fittings:   

  At cost 48,791 43,791 

  Accumulated depreciation -23,467 -20,297 

Total: 25,324 23,494 

Office and field equipment:   

  At cost 67,802 67,802 

  Accumulated depreciation -67,802 -65,990 

Total: 0 1,812 

Computer Equipment:   

  At cost 180,847 162,026 

  Accumulated depreciation -161,252 -162,026 

Total: 19,595 0 

 3,707,547 3,720,531 

Investment property   

Building at fair value 
(a)

 391,700 391,700 

Accumulated impairment losses 0 0 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment: 4,099,247 4,112,231 

(a) Land and buildings were re-valued as at 1 July 2013 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).  The valuations were performed during 
the year ended 30 June 2014 and recognised as at 30 June 2014. In undertaking the  revaluation, fair value of buildings was determined on the basis of depreciated      
replacement cost and fair value of land was determined on the basis of comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land).  
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Land Building 
Plant & 

equipment 

Office 
furniture 
& fittings 

Office  
& field 

equipment 

Computer      
equipment 

Investment 
property 

Total 

2014 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Carrying amount at start of  
period 3,600,000 79,968 15,257 23,494 1,812 0 391,700 4,112,231 

Additions    5,000  28,231  33,231 

Transfers        0 

Other disposals   -13,206     -13,206 

Revaluation increments        0 

Revaluation decrements        0 

Impairment losses 
(a)

        0 

Impairment losses reversed 
(a)

        0 

Depreciation  -17,340 -2,051 -3,170 -1,812 -8,636  -33,009 

Carrying amount at end of  
period 3,600,000 62,628 0 25,324 0 19,595 391,700 4,099,247 

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set 
out in the table below.  

2013         

Carrying amount at start of      
period 

3,600,00
0 79,968 19,325 7,602 4,564 0 391,700 4,103,159 

Additions    17,200    17,200 

Transfers        0 

Other disposals        0 

Revaluation increments        0 

Revaluation decrements        0 

Impairment losses 
(a)

        0 

Impairment losses reversed 
(a)

        0 

Depreciation     -4,068 -1,308 -2,752     -8,128 

Carrying amount at end of  
period 

3,600,00
0 79,968 15,257 23,494 1,812 0 391,700 4,112,231  

(a) 
Recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Where an asset measured at cost is written-down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the    

Statement of Comprehensive Income. Where a previously revalued asset is written-down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in the       
Statement of Changes in Equity.  
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Note 19:Fair value measurements 

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period. 
 
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) 

Assets measured at fair value: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Fair Value At 

End of Period 

2014 $ $ $ $ 

Land (Note 18) - - 3,600,000 3,600,000 

Buildings (Note 18) - - 454,328 454,328 

 0 0 4,054,328 4,054,328 

2014 
Land Buildings 

$ $ 

Fair Value at start of period 3,600,000 471,668 

Additions - - 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in 
Profit or Loss 

- - 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income 

- - 

Transfers (from/(to) Level 2) - - 

Disposals - - 

Depreciation Expense - -17,340 

Fair Value at end of period 3,600,000 454,328 

Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or 
loss, under ‘Other Gains’ 

- - 

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period  
included in profit or loss for assets held at the end of 
the reporting period 

- - 
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Valuation processes 
 
There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period. 
  
Transfers in and out of a fair value level are recognised on the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the 
transfer.  Transfers are generally limited to assets newly classified as non-current assets held for sale as Treasurer's instructions 
require valuations of land, buildings and infrastructure to be categorised within Level 3 where the valuations will utilise significant 
Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis. 
 
Fair value for existing use specialised buildings and infrastructure assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the 
remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost.  Depreciated replacement cost 
is the current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the       
already consumed or expired economic benefit, or obsolescence, and optimisation (where applicable) of the asset.  Current      
replacement cost is generally determined by reference to the market observable replacement cost of a substitute asset of       
comparable utility and the gross project size specifications. 
 
Fair value for restricted use land is based on market value, by either using market evidence of sales of comparable land that is 
unrestricted less restoration costs to return the site to a vacant and marketable condition (low restricted use land), or, comparison 
with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land). 
 
No restoration costs have been estimated for the purpose of returning the site to a vacant and marketable condition. The site has 
been listed with the Department of Lands of the Corporations intent to vacate the property without any liability to return the site to 
a marketable condition. 
 
Significant Level 3 inputs used by the Statutory Authority are derived and evaluated as follows: 
 
Historical cost per square metre floor area (m2) 
 
The costs of constructing specialised buildings with similar utility are extracted from financial records of the Statutory Authority, 
then indexed by movements in CPI. 
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Consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset 
 
These are estimated by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). 
 
Selection of land with restricted utility 
 
Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility.  Relevant      
comparators of land with low level utility are selected by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). 
 
Historical cost per cubic metre (m3) 
 
The costs of construction of infrastructure are extracted from financial records of the Statutory Authority and indexed by        
movements in construction costs by quantity surveyors. 
 
Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Note 18. 

Valuation  

technique(s) 

Unobservable     

inputs 

Range of              
unobservable       

inputs       
(weighted       

average) 

Relationship of   
unobservable     

inputs to fair value 

Description and fair 
value as at 

30 June 2014  

Land 

Current Use 
Selection of land 

with similar           
approximate utility 

$214 per m
2 

Higher value of    
similar land           

increases estimated 
fair value. 

$3,600,000 

  

Buildings Depreciated   
Replacement 

Cost 

Historical cost per 
square metre floor 

area (m
2
) 

$133 per m2 
Higher historical 

cost per m
2
          

increases fair value. 
$454,328 
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Basis of Valuation 
 
In the absence of market-based evidence, due to the specialised nature of some non‑financial assets, these assets are valued at 
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy on an existing use basis. The existing use basis recognises that restrictions or limitations have 
been placed on their use and disposal when they are not determined to be surplus to requirements. These restrictions are         
imposed by virtue of the assets being held to deliver a specific community service and the Statutory Authority’s enabling            
legislation. 
 
Subsequent to balance date, the Corporation has listed the Cockburn Road site via the Property Asset Clearing House process 
with the Department of Lands to obtain expression of interest from parties willing to take over the site. The Corporation has no    
immediate alternate use for the property and anticipates it to be transferred to another agency during 2014/15 without any risk of 
liability to return the site to a marketable state. 
 

 
 

 
There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment, infrastructure and intangible assets at 30 June 2014. 
 
The Authority held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period, and at the end of the 
reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use. 
All surplus assets at 30 June 2014 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written-off.  

Note 20: Impairment of fixed assets 
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 2014 2013 

Current:  $ $ 

Sundry creditors 68,229 696,745 

End Point Royalties 218,860 227,129 

Tax liabilities 50,848 2,758 

Other creditors 37,052 132,541 

Accrued expenses 6,236 261,192 

Accrued salaries 33,571 49,633 

Security deposits held 18,750 18,750 

Total current: 433,546 1,388,748 

Note 21: Payables. 

 2014 2013 

Current -   $ $ 

 Employee benefits provision:   

 Annual leave 
(a)

 82,068 60,867 

 Long service leave 
(b)

 34,011 67,908 

Total current: 116,079 128,775 

Non-Current -    

 Employee benefits provision:   

 Long service leave 
(b)

 67,540 36,115 

 Deferred salary scheme 0 0 

Total non-current: 67,540 36,115 

Note 22: Provisions.  
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 2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 76,599 60,867 

More than 12 months after the reporting period 5,469 0 

Total: 82,068 60,867 

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 
12 months after the reporting period.  Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows: 

Note 23: Other liabilities 

(b) 
Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 

12 months after the reporting period.  Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:  

 2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 34,011 67,908 

More than 12 months after the reporting period 67,450 36,115 

Total: 101,551 104,023 

The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including workers’ 
compensation insurance.  The provision is the present value of expected future payments.  The associated expense, apart from 
the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 12 ‘Administration expenses’.  

 2014 2013 

Current:  $ $ 

Payments due to growers first and Interims 2,486,332 1,624,997 

Payments due to growers final 615,924 1,362,611 

Total current: 3,102,257 2,987,608 
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Note 24: Equity 

The Government holds the equity interest in the Authority on behalf of the community. Equity represents the residual interest in 
the net assets of the Authority. The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of  
non-current assets.  

 2014 2013 

Contributed equity  $ $ 

Balance at start of period 710,000 710,000 

Balance at end of period 710,000 710,000 

Reserves   

 Asset revaluation surplus:   

   Balance at start of period 3,305,885 3,305,885 

   Buildings 0 36,981 

Balance at end of period 3,305,885 3,305,885 

 Grower reserve:   

   Balance at start of period 1,578,679 1,321,144 

   Contributions from pools 712,856 755,342 

   Distributions to pools -929,597 -497,807 

Balance at end of period 1,361,938 1,587,679 

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)   

Balance at start of period -463,336 17,226 

Result for the period 132,792 -480,562 

Balance at end of period -330,544 -463,336 



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2013/2014 
87 

Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Note 25: Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows 

Reconciliation of cash 
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement 
of Financial Position as follows:  

 2014 2013 
  $ $ 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents (refer note 15.) 18,750 18,750 

Cash and cash equivalents:   

   Cash at bank 1,732,371 2,591,930 

   Cash on deposit 1,004,827 1,419,304 

   Cash on hand 400 400 

Balance at end of period 2,756,348 4,030,384 

Reconciliation of profit after income tax equivalent to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities. 

 2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Profit after income tax equivalents 132,792 -480,562 

Non-cash items:   

   Depreciation and amortisation expense 33,009 8,128 

   Revaluation increments on investment assets -2,930 0 

(Increase)/decrease in assets:   

   Current receivables (c)
 -373,818 224,662 

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:   

   Current payables (c) 
 -955,201 754,229 

   Current provisions -12,696 -38,101 

   Other current liabilities 114,648 113,090 

   Non-current provisions 31,426 -7114 

Net GST receipts/(payments) (a)
 0 17 

Change in GST in receivables/payables (b)
 -7,430 23,756 

Net grower reserve movements -216,741 257,535 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities  -1,256,941 855,640 

(a) This is the net GST paid/received, ie. cash transactions. 
(b) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables. 
(c) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase  
       of non-current assets are not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items. 
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Note 26: Commitments 

 2014 2013 

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments:  $ $ 

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:   

  Within 1 year 41,854 47,198 

  Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 16,057 26,885 

  Later than 5 years 0 0 

Total: 57,911 74,083 

These commitments are all inclusive of GST.  

Note 27: Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Contaminated sites 
 
Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Authority is required to report known and suspected contaminated sites to the        
Department of Environment and Conservation (DEC). In accordance with the Act, DEC classifies these sites on the basis of the 
risk to human health, the environment and environmental values. Sites classified as contaminated (or suspected) may impose a 
liability on the Authority for remediation expenses.   
    
During the year the Authority reported one suspected contaminated site to DEC which has been classified as possibly               
contaminated. The Authority is unable to assess the likely outcome of the classification process, and accordingly, it is not            
practicable to estimate the potential financial effect or to identify the uncertainties relating to accordingly, it is not practicable to   
estimate the potential financial effect or to identify the uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflows.  
 
Whilst there is no possibility of reimbursement of any future expenses that may be incurred in the remediation of these sites, the 
Authority may apply for funding from the Contaminated Sites Management Account to undertake further investigative work or to 
meet remediation costs that may be required.   
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Note 28: Events occurring after the end of the reporting period 

 
Contingent Liabilities  
   
In 2014 a court judgement ruled that the Corporation was deemed to be a trading corporation and the appropriate jurisdiction for 
matters relating to its employee agreements should be Fair Work Australia (FWA). Further legal advice will be sought in            
conjunction with the Department of Commerce to clarify which entity can legally represent the Corporation employees in all       
employment negotiations, contractual issues and disputes.  Approximately $80,000 of legal advice may be incurred to clarify this 
matter and support the Corporation in meeting its legal obligations under FWA. 
 
The Authority is not aware of any contingent liability as at the financial reporting date. 
 
Contingent assets 
 
The Authority is not aware of any contingent assets as at the financial reporting date.  

There have been no significant events subsequent to the reporting date that would have any material effect upon the Authority and 
all operations contained therein. 
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Note 29: Explanatory statement 

Significant variations between estimates and actual results are shown below:  Significant variations are considered to be those 
greater than 5% and greater than $100,000. 

Significant variances between  
Budget and Actual 2014 

2014 
$ 

Actual 

2014 
$ 

Budget 

 
$ 

Variance 

Sales 35,566,470 38,187,328 -2,620,858 

Cost of Sales 31,019,014 33,476,641 -2,457,627 

Sales 
 
Revenues below target due to lower yields and pack out rates across the Pools, higher discounting and merchant rebates.  
8% DME growth target not achieved. 
 
Cost of sales 
 
Grower payments in line with the reduced volumes with minor additional costs due to higher than expected smalls sales mix and 
increased PBR royalties mix and collection rates.  

Significant variances between  
Actual 2014 and Actual 2013  

 2014 
$ 

2013 
$ 

Variance 
$ 

Sales 35,566,470 36,628,951 -1,062,480 

Cost of Sales 30,019,014 34,152,315 -3,133,301 

Supplies and services 2,675,298 927,940 1,747,358 

Other expenses 186,898 61,995 124,903 

Sales 
 
Revenues reflects an overall 3% decrease primarily due to sufficient quality and product availability at times.  Higher merchant 
pricing has assisted in offsetting some of the reduced revenue base. 
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Cost of sales 
 
Reduced grower payments due to volumes and the additional contribution to fund the new PMC marketing consumption campaign. 
 
Supplies and Services 
 
2014 was the first full year the PMC funded grower marketing campaign.  This added approximately $1.9m to the gross costs base 
before any reserve funding.  Other services costs were maintained at or below prior year levels. 
 
Other Expenses 
 
2014 was the first full year impact of the structured research agreement under the Potato Research WA banner.  General R&D   
activity also included a study tour to Tasmania and some minor additional projects. 

Note 30: Financial instruments 

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies 
 
Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and cash equivalents, commercial bills, receivables and payables. The       
Authority has limited exposure to financial risks and the overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks identified 
below.  
 
Credit risk 
 
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Authority’s receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in 
financial loss to the Authority.   
 
The Authority measures credit risk on a fair value basis and monitors risk on a regular basis. The maximum exposure to credit risk 
at end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets 
inclusive of any provisions for impairment as shown in the table at note 30(c) ‘Financial instruments disclosures’ and note 16 
‘Receivables’. 
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The Authority only trades with recognised, creditworthy third parties and has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and 
services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an on-going 
basis with the result that exposure to bad debts is minimal. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk. 
 
Provision for impairment of financial assets is calculated on past experience, and current and expected changes in client ratings.  
 
Liquidity risk 
 
The Authority is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business. Liquidity risk arises when the         
Authority is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. There are appropriate procedures to manage cash flows by 
monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.  
 
Market risk 
 
The Authority does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks. The Authority has no long term 
debt therefore is not exposed to risk from changes in interest rates.  
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(b) Categories of financial instruments 
In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial 
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows: 

 2014 2013 

  $000 $000 

Financial Assets:   

  Cash and cash equivalents 2,738 4,011 

  Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19 19 

  Loans and receivables 
(a)

 1,856 1,505 

Financial Liabilities:     

  Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 3,536 4,374 

(a) The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).  

(c) Financial instrument disclosures 
 
Credit risk and interest rate exposures 
 
The following table disclose the Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk, interest rate exposures and the ageing analysis of 
financial assets. The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of      
financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired 
financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Authority. 
 
The Authority holds bank guarantees ($1,490,000) and cash deposits ($18,750) as security relating to the financial assets it holds. 
 
The Authority does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in 
them being past due or impaired.  
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Interest rate exposures and aging  analysis of financial assets
 (a) 

 Ageing Analysis of Financial Assets 

 
Financial Assets 

Carrying 
Amount 

Not Past Due and 
Not Impaired 

Up to 1 
month 

1 to 3 
months 

3-12 
months 

1-5  
Years 

More 
than 5 
years 

Impaired 
financial 
assets 

$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s 

2014         

Cash and cash         
equivalents 

2,738 2,738 0      

Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents 

19 19 0      

Receivables 
(a)

 1,856 1,557 299      

Total: 4,613 4,314 299 0 0 0 0 0 

         

2013         

Cash and cash         
equivalents 

4,011 4,011       

Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents 

19 19       

Receivables 
(a)

 1,505 1,505       

Total: 5,535 5,535 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).  
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Interest rate exposures and maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities
  

 Interest rate exposure Maturity date 

 
2014  

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 

Carrying 
amount 

Fixed          
interest 

rate 

Variable 
interest 

rate 

Non-
interest 
bearing 

Total 
Nominal 
amount 

Up to 1 
month 

1 to 3 
months 

3-12 
months 

1-5  
Years 

More 
than 5 
years 

% $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s 

Financial Assets            

Cash and cash        
equivalents 

3.00% 2,738  1,732 0 2,738 2,738     

Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents 

 19  19  19 19     

Receivables 
(a)

  1,856   1,856 1,856 1,856     

Total:  4,613 0 1,751 1,856 4,613 4,613 0 0 0 0 

            

Financial Liabilities            

Payables   434   434 434 434     

Outstanding payments to 
growers 

 3,102   3,102 3,102 3,102     

 Total:  3,536 0 0 3,536 3,536 3,536 0 0 0 0 

(a) The amount of receivables includes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).  

Liquidity and interest rate exposure  
 
The following table details the Authority’s interest rate and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial        
liabilities.  The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses  
only the carrying amounts of each item. 
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Interest rate exposures and maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities
  

 Interest rate exposure Maturity date 

 
2013  

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 

Carrying 
amount 

Fixed 
interest 

rate 

Variable 
interest 

rate 

Non-
interest 
bearing 

Total 
Nominal 
amount 

Up to 
1 

month 

1 to 3 
months 

3-12 
months 

1-5  
Years 

More 
than 5 
years 

% $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Financial Assets            

Cash and cash         
equivalents 

3.80% 4,011 1,419 2,592  4,011 4,011     

Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents 

 19  19  19    19  

Receivables 
(a)

  1,505   1,505 1,505 1,505     

Total:  5,535 1,419 2,611 1,505 5,535 5,516 0 0 19 0 

            

Financial Liabilities            

Payables   1,387   1,387 1,387 1,387     

Outstanding payments to 
growers 

 2,987   2,987 2,987 2,987     

 Total:  4,374 0 0 4,374 4,374 4,374 0 0 0 0 

(a) The amount of receivables includes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).  
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis 
 
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Authority’s financial assets and liabilities at the end 
of the reporting period on the surplus for the period and equity for a 100 basis point in interest rates.  It is assumed that the change 
in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.  

  - 100 basis points + 100 basis points 

Financial Assets. 

Carrying 
amount 

Surplus Equity Surplus Equity 

  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

2014      

 Cash and cash equivalent 2,738 -27 -27 27 27 

 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19     

Total Increase/(Decrease) 2,756 -27 -27 27 27 

      

2013      

 Cash and cash equivalent 4,011 -40 -40 40 40 

 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19     

Total Increase/(Decrease) 4,030 -40 -40 40 40 

The PMC does not have any financial liabilities subject to interest rate sensitivity.  
 
Fair values 
 
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are 
recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes. 
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Note 31: Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers 

Remuneration of members of the accountable authority 
 
The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and  

other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:  

 
The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of members of the accountable 
authority.  
  
 

Remuneration Band ($) 2014 2013 

   

10,001 - 20,000 3 3 

20,001 - 30,000 2 2 

30,001 - 40,000 0 1 

40,001 - 50,000 1 0 

   

 $ $ 

   

Base remuneration and superannuation 124,772 106,046 

Annual leave and long service leave accruals 0 0 

Other benefits 21,687 21,916 

   

The total remuneration of members of the accountable authority  146,459 127,962 
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Remuneration of senior officers  
 
The number of senior officers, other than senior officers reported as members of the accountable authority, whose total fees,     
salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year fall within the following bands are:  
  

 

Remuneration Band ($) 2014 2013 

    

90,001 - 100,000 0 1 

140,001 - 150,000 1 0 

150,001 - 160,000 1 0 

160,001 - 170,000 0 1 

180,001 - 190,000 0 1 

230,001 - 240,000 1 0 

   

 $ $ 

   

Base remuneration and superannuation 515,120 425,133 

Annual leave and long service leave accruals 18,497 18,151 

Other benefits 132 1,425 

   

The total remuneration of senior officers  533,749 444,709 

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of senior officers other than   
senior officers reported as members of the accountable authority.  



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2013/2014 
100 

Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Note 32: Remuneration of auditor 

Remuneration paid or payable in respect of the audit for the current financial year is as follows:  

Note 32 refers to fees related to the years reported. It will not reflect the expenditure reported in the expenses.  

 2014 2013 

  $ $ 

Office of the Auditor General 42,000 52,000 

The total remuneration of auditor  42,000 52,000 

The Authority consists of a single financial output as reflected in these financial statements. 
 
No further segment reporting is required.  

Note 33: Schedule of income and expenses by service 

Note 34: Related Party disclosure 

In addition to remuneration (note 31), the Authority also makes the following disclosures: 
 
Herbert Russell (Board Chairman) is a licensed potato grower and has delivered during the 2014 year. Payments for his potatoes 
have been based upon commercial packout gradings and grower payment rates as they apply to all licensed growers in the same 
pools, in the same year. Specific grower payments have always been deemed confidential, therefore the value of grower        
payments made to Herbert Russell are not disclosed. 
 
By Statute, the Authority is required to deduct from growers an APC fee for service and remit to the APC. Herbert Russell is a 
Committee Member of the Agricultural Produce Commission – Potato Producers Committee (APC-PPC), a subcommittee of the 
APC. During the year the Authority deducted from growers $272,505 and paid to the APC $243,250. 
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Darryl Smith (Board Member) is a licensed potato grower and has delivered during the 2014 year. Payments for his potatoes 
have been based upon commercial packout gradings and grower payment rates as they apply to all licensed growers in the same 
pools, in the same year. Specific grower payments have always been deemed confidential, therefore the value of grower        
payments made to Darryl Smith are not disclosed.  
 
Gregory Starkie (Board Member) is a licensed potato grower and has delivered during the 2014 year. Payments for his potatoes 
have been based upon commercial packout gradings and grower payment rates as they apply to all licensed growers in the same 
pools, in the same year. Specific grower payments have always been deemed confidential, therefore the value of grower        
payments made to Gregory Starkie are not disclosed. 
 

 2014 2013 

  $ $ 

(a) Write-offs   

Bad Debts written-off 0 0 

Note 35: Supplementary financial information  

As receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis, during the financial 
year there were no write-offs of any financial assets or bad debts. 
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4.2 Key Performance Indicators 

Certification of Key Performance Indicators 

For the year ended 30 June 2014 

 

We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for         
assisting users to assess the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia’s performance, and fairly represent the  
performance of the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.  

H Russell  
Chairman 
15 September 2014 

A McAuliffe 
Board Member 
15 September 2014 

S Boczar 
Chief Financial Officer 
15 September 2014 
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1. Effectiveness Indicators 

The Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia’s primary outcome is outlined in the Marketing of Potatoes Act 1946 and 
further defined by the Ministers’ objectives as “the quantity and variety of (ware) potatoes supplied meets the demand of the state’s 
consumers”.  
 
Key Performance Indicators have been selected to demonstrate the extent to which the Corporation’s outputs achieve the desired 
outcome outlined by the Minister. The Corporation has set targets of the indicators, based on industry standards, market trends 
and requirements of the Minister’s objectives. 

Key Performance Indicators 

1.1    The extent to which the Corporation aligned domestic production levels with local (ware market) demand 
 
The Corporation aims to align domestic production within ± 5% of the local market demand. This indicator allows the Corporation to 
ascertain the effectiveness of its supply management. 

 

2010 / 11 
% 

2011 / 12 
% 

2012 / 13 
% 

2013/14 
% 

Market Demand 100 100 100 100 

DME Production 101.0 93.4 92.2 97.0 

The KPI was achieved. 

 

Pools 1 and 2 were impacted by several weather events which effected seed plantings thus reducing the quality and quantity of  
potatoes produced.  Severe heat conditions in South Australia during January, February and March this year impacted the ability to 
fully supply East coast demand.  WA volumes were delivered to SA as part of this one-off opportunity which enabled the PMC to 
obtain a recovery on low grade potatoes as opposed to dumping them at nil return.  Import restrictions into the WA market for part 
of the year assisted DME production. 
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1.2    The extent to which the Corporation provides varieties to the domestic market 
 
Through its supply management the Corporation provides a range of varieties to the domestic market.  
 
The target is to provide the same or more as the prior year.  

 

Number of varieties made available to wholesale merchants.  

Year Season 2014 2013 2012 

Jul – Sep                        Winter 20 21 17 

Oct – Dec                       Spring 24 28 18 

Jan – Mar                       Summer 20 22 21 

Apr – Jun                       Autumn 24 27 19 

As potato varieties are seasonal the data provided shows the number of different varieties available each season and the total   
different varieties commercially available within the year. The number shown above reflects sales to wholesale merchants for the 
domestic ware market, however the varieties are not always individually labelled at the retail level.  
 
Consumer feedback has indicated that varieties produced in limited quantities are not being recognised or made available at the 
point of sale. PMC realises retailers need to receive adequate quantity and quality throughout the year.  

Services provided - Regulation of the potato production in Western Australia for the benefit of the public 
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The KPI was not achieved. 
(1)

 “Services Costs” is defined as all administrative and operational overheads incurred in regulating the supply of potatoes in the 
State and administering the Act. 

 2014 2013 2012 

Average days lag between delivery and paid.  11.64 10.13 10.17 

The KPI was achieved. Due to some administration staff turnover in the 1st half of the financial year, payment days averaged 12 
days. Maintaining staff continuity in the 2nd half, payments averaged 11 days. Overall, this KPI was achieved with the result       
appropriate given the circumstances concerning the administration function and some Pool 1 merchant supply and payment delays 
and issues which impacted the timing of grower payments. A continual cash focus is in place which aims to deliver the appropriate 
balance between grower payments and merchant collections. 

 
2. Efficiency Indicators 

2.1    Corporation services costs 
(1)

 per tonne of production 

The Corporation services costs are also reported as actual dollars to more accurately reflect the administration costs to run the 
Corporation and variations from year to year due to tonnage changes.  The 2014 financial year is the first full year of running the 
marketing campaign on behalf of all growers and associates.  These marketing activities were budgeted at approximately $1.9m 
for the 2014 year and actual spend has been in line with this target, whilst delivering improvement in consumer demand and      
consumption rates. 

 2014    

 Budget 2014 2013 2012 

Actual $ $4,875,042 $4,932,495 $2,994,535 $2,605,145 

Cost $ / T $83.26 $90.22 $54.57 $51.90 

2.2    Maintaining 1st payments to growers within acceptable credit terms 

The Corporation aims to make all 1st payments to growers within 14 days of delivery. This indicator is a measure of the             
Corporation’s responsiveness to the growers. 
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4.3: Ministerial Directions. 

 

 

 

 

 Grower Report. 
4.3 Ministerial Directions 

 

To ensure the domestic market is being adequately supplied with potatoes, growers’ returns are being approved in accordance with 
section 32(1) of the Act and the public is provided with adequate data, the Corporation is directed under section 20A of the Act to: 

 

1.  Fund an independent study conducted by an appropriate qualified person, to determine the level of return to be paid to growers 
 for each pool which will provide a reasonable opportunity for profit from the economically efficient production of potatoes.  The 
 report should be updated annually and a copy of this report is to be made available to my office.  The information should be    
 quoted when submitting recommendations under section 32(1) of the Act; 

 

2.  Consult with the Potato Merchants Association when determining the quantity of potatoes to be recommended under              
 Section 26(2) of the Act and provide details of any disagreement between the two organisation’s estimations; and 

 

3.  Provide detailed statistical data in the Corporation’s Annual Report of the performance of each marketing pool. 

 

In accordance with Section 26(2) of the Act, the Corporation was directed under Section 20A to accept the following quantities of ware 
potatoes during domestic marketing pools: 

 

14522 tonnes during Pool 4, 2013-14  

13986 tonnes during Pool 3, 2013-14  

14240 tonnes during Pool 2, 2013-14  

15228 tonnes during Pool 1, 2013-14  

The Corporation received the following Ministerial direction on 27 March 2009: 
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4.4 Other Financial Disclosures 

There were no capital projects in construction as at the reporting date. 

 
Capital Works 

Staff Profile 
The Corporation remains committed to ensuring that the talents and resources of employees are 
utilised to the full and that all  employees receive fair and equitable treatment. 

 
Employment and Industrial Relations 

 2014 2013 

Full time Permanent 8.5 11.0 

Full time Contract 2.0 2.0 

Part time (FTE basis) 2.6 0.8 

Staff total: 13.1 13.8 

   

Board Members (FTE basis)  1.0 1.0 

Overall total: 14.1 14.8 

Staff Development 
The Corporation has a commitment to the development of its employees.  Our strategy is to build a highly skilled, professional and 
fair workplace with the ability to adapt to changing business technology and environment. Training requirements are identified 
through an employee professional development plan that is based on the outcomes of staff performance evaluation.  
 
During the year the Corporation spent $2282 on training and development, with courses being undertaken in the areas of Seed 
Potato Tuber Inspection, Professional Presentations at the Australian Institute of Management and various personal development 
courses including further education. 
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Workers Compensation 
One compensation claim was lodged after the close of the financial year relating to an alleged incident and injury during the year. 
This claim is still pending and under investigation. The Corporation disputes this claim vigorously and has not admitted to any    
liability until a full investigation has been undertaken. The employee has subsequently resigned from their position in August 2014. 
No lost time was recorded during the 2013/14 financial year. This compares with one minor claim with no lost time recorded in 
2012/13. 

4.5 Governance Disclosures 

The Corporation of Western Australia requires all Board members, senior officers and employees to declare any interests in      
existing or proposed contracts between the Corporation and firms of which members, senior officers and employees may have a 
holding, share or related interest, whether directly or indirectly.  

At the date of reporting, three Board members have expressed an interest in contracts other than normal contracts of employment 
of service with the Corporation.   

Further disclosure is made in Note 34 to the Financial Statements. 

 
Contracts with Senior Officers 

 
Insurance Premiums Paid to Indemnify Members of the Board 

An insurance policy has been taken out to indemnify members of the Board and senior staff against any liability incurred under 
Sections 13 or 14 of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996.  The amount of the insurance premium paid for 
2013-2014 was $6,140. 
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4.6 Other Legal Requirements 

 
Advertising (Electoral Act 1907, S175ZE) 

In compliance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the Corporation is required to report on expenditure incurred during 
the financial year ended 30 June 2014 in relation to advertising agencies, market research organisations, polling organisations, 
direct mail organisations and media advertising organisations. The expenditure totalled $1384358 (ex GST) and comprises the 
following: 

 2013/2014 

Media Advertising Organisation (Carat Media Services)  619,267 

Advertising Agency (Rare Pty Ltd) 724,191 

Market Research Organisation (Fresh Logic)  40,900 

Total $1,384,358  

 
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (Disability Services Act 1993, S2) 

The Corporation is aware of its obligations under the Disability Services Act 1993 and is committed to providing employment     
opportunities, building access and document availability to all persons including those with disabilities. As a regulatory body,   
however, the Corporation does not provide services or organise events for the general public. Public meeting rooms, work        
stations, communications and bathroom facilities are available on the ground floor of the Corporation’s premises. 

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury management performance for 2013/2014. 

Indicator Target 201314 Actual 2013/14 

Number of fatalities. NIL NIL 

Lost time injury/disease (LTI/D) incidence rate. NIL NIL 

Lost time injury severity rate. NIL NIL 

Percentage of injured workers returned to work within (i) 13 weeks and (ii) 26 weeks N/A N/A 

Percentage of managers and supervisors trained in occupational safety, health and 
injury management responsibilities. 100% 100% 
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Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes (Public 

Sector Management Act, 1994, S31(1)) 

1. The Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia has complied with the Public Sector Standards, the Western Australian 
Public Sector Code of Ethics and the Corporation’s Code of Ethics for staff and Code of Conduct for Board members. 

2. Procedures designed to ensure such compliance have been put in place and appropriate internal assessments conducted to 
verify that the statement made above is correct. 

3. OPSSC reporting under s31 of the Public Sector Management Act 1994, in 2011-2012 was: 

Compliance Issues Significant Action taken to monitor and ensure compliance 

Public Sector Standards -  
WA Public Sector Code of Ethics. 

 None 

Information on the WA Public Sector Code of Ethics is included in the Induction 
Manuals for staff and Board members and is available to staff on the Corporation’s 
intraweb. 

Corporation’s Code of Ethics for staff and 
Code of Conduct for Board members. 

 None 

Information on the Corporation’s Codes are included the Induction Manuals for staff 
and Board members and is available to staff on the Corporation’s computer network. 
All staff and Board members are required to submit Declaration of Interest forms 
each year.  

Public Interest Disclosure. 

 None 

Information on the requirements of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 are      
included the Induction Manuals for staff and Board members. 
All staff have intraweb access to detailed internal procedures and guidelines on 
lodging disclosures, investigation, reporting and protecting informants.  

Public Sector Standards - Human  
Resource Management. 

 None 

A specialist HR consultant was engaged to provide advice to the Corporation on 
several matters, including recruitment and reclassification of positions. 

Public Sector Standards – Grievance 
Standard. 

 None 

Information on the Corporation’s Grievance Procedures is included in the Staff     
Induction Manual and is available to staff on the Corporation’s intraweb. 
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The Corporation maintains a structured records system for the management of all hard copy and electronic records, as required 
under section 19 of the State Records Act 2000.  
 
The Corporation completed a comprehensive review of its Recordkeeping Plan, following guidelines provided by the State      
Records Office, and submitted this to the State Records Commission in December 2008 in accordance with section 28 of the 
State Records Act 2000.  The Corporation undertook to amend the Plan, taking into account the issues identified in the review   
report, by 30 September 2009.  The amended Plan was submitted to the State Records Office on 3 September 2009. 
 
The State Records Commission approved the amended Plan on 7 April 2010, which will be required to be reviewed by 7 April 
2015 in accordance with section 28 of Act. 
 
The State Records Commission separately approved the Corporation’s revised Retention and Disposal Schedule/Authority on 18 
June 2010. 
 
The Staff Induction Manual outlines employees’ roles and responsibilities in regard to their compliance with the Recordkeeping 
Plan.    

 
Record Keeping Plan (State Records Act 2000, S61) 

 
Corruption Prevention 

Information relating to corruption prevention is included in the Corporation’s Staff Induction Manual and is available to staff on the 
Corporation’s computer network. The induction program for staff outlines the risks of corruption and misconduct and the           
processes used to report suspected cases of corruption. 
 
The Code of Conduct for Board members specifies that any information about actual or potentially corrupt or illegal activities must 
be disclosed to the Chairperson or, if necessary, to the Corruption and Crime Commission. The Corporation is committed to      
expanding the scope of its risk management planning to address the risks of corruption and misconduct. 

4.7 Government Policy Requirements 
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Substantive Equality 

The Corporation is aware of the intent and substance of the Policy Framework for Substantive Equality.  It is committed to   
providing its services free from any form of discrimination. 

 
Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management 

The Corporation is committed to providing a safe and healthy working environment for all employees, and to assisting injured   
employees to return to work as soon as medically appropriate.  
 
It has complied with the requirements of the: 
  Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984. 
  Code of Practice: Occupational Safety and Health in the Western Australian Public Sector 2007. 
  Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981.  
  Workers’ Compensation Code of Practice (Injury Management) 2005. 
 
This commitment is delivered through the Corporation’s Occupational Safety and Health Management System, comprising       
policies, plans and procedures relating to: 
  Injury management. 
  Risk management.  
  Asbestos management. 
  Inspector safety. 
  Forklift safety. 

Information on the Corporations’ Occupational Safety and Health Management System is included in the Staff Induction Manual 
and is available on the Corporation’s intraweb. 
 
Employees are encouraged to inform the Corporation’s Safety and Health Representative about workplace safety and health   
concerns, who reports and makes recommendations to the Chief Executive Officer.  The Chief Executive Officer takes full         
responsibility for ensuring that action is taken to resolve employees’ safety and health concerns. 
 
As the Corporation has small workforce with management and employees interacting closely on the Corporation’s business on a 
daily basis, an Occupational Safety and Health Committee is considered unnecessary. 



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2013/2014 
113 

Grower Report  
Detailing Pool Performances 

For the year ending 30 June 2014 
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Certification of Special Purpose Financial Statements 

For the year ended 30 June 2014 

 
The following pages represent Special Purpose Financial Statements that have been prepared to detail the financial affairs 
of the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia in a format that is relevant to growers and the growing pools. 
 
These reports contain data and extracts from the official Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia Annual Report 
for the year ending June 2014 in addition to other relevant data deemed appropriate for further disclosure. 
 
These Special Purpose Financial Statements have not been audited. At no time does the Management or the Board 
of the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia, imply, infer or state these special purpose financial 
statements have been approved or audited by the office of the Auditor General or otherwise authorised persons. 
 
Growers wishing to review the audited financial statements contained within the official Potato Marketing Corporation of 
Western Australia Annual Report for the year ending June 2014 should refer to the Annual Report for the year ended 30 
June 2014 as disclosed in the prior pages of this document. 

 
S Boczar 
Chief Financial Officer 

Grower Report 
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All unplaced loads are assessed at the Merchant by PMCWA staff 
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Potato Marketing Corporation - Growing Year 2014 Historical Normalised Returns to Growers 
(a)

 

(a) Consistent application of volumes as per Product     
Movement Flow diagram over Pool 4 season or equivalent 

TOTAL

Weighbridge T 60,538           UNIT COST / (REVENUE)

PER GROSS TONNE

POOL AVAILABILITY T 60,538 OVER THE WEIGHBRIDGE

Gross Tonnes Delivered T 54,673           

Dumping (1,021)

COMMERCIAL PACKOUT T 53,652           

REVENUE

Sales $ 35,566,470 $ 587.51 (A)

COST OF SALES

TOTAL COST of SALES $ (31,019,014) ($ 512.39) (B)

TRADING PROFIT $ 4,547,456

SERVICE EXPENSES

 - Employee $ (1,692,932)

 - Supply & Services $ (2,675,298)

 - Depreciation $ (33,009)

 - Administration                  $ (210,650)

 - Accommodation $ (133,708)

 - Other Expenses $ (186,898)

TOTAL SERVICES $ (4,932,494) ($ 81.48) (C)

OTHER REVENUE

 - Interest Income $ 81,257

 - Rental Income $ 66,698

 - Other Income $ 153,135

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE $ 301,090 $ 4.97 (D)

TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 712,856

TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ (929,597) $ 3.58

Surplus $ 132,792 $2.19 (E)

Year Pool 1 Pool 2 Pool 3 Pool 4

2013 / 14 740 778 678 699
2012 / 13 798 745 652 653
2011 / 12 741 761 691 557
2010 / 11 730 709 656 614
2009 / 10 829 879 783 700
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Profit and Loss by Licensed Pool 

For the year ended 30 June 2014 

 
The following page reflects the Income Statement (surplus / deficit) itemised by each licensed Pool and contract           
transactions. The total column can be compared to the Income Statement as shown on page 49 of the Annual Report. 

  

The purpose of this disclosure is to assist growers in each Pool to see their specific financial revenues, grower payments 
and contributions to the Services costs.  

  

The information shown on this document highlights the functional flow of the Corporation.  

 

The hectares licensed, planted and average yields are for information only.  

  

Points of Interest 

 The tonnage delivered less dumpings = tonnages available to the Pool for commercial activity. The tonnage             
commercially packed must equal the Pool Availability.  

 Tonnage delivered does not equal tonnage sold – due to dumpings. 

 Grades paid to Growers does not equal grades sold to Merchants – due to dumpings. 

 Tonnage sold and paid is reported as Gross Tonnes, ie includes soil and waste, unless otherwise stated. Gross tonnes 
is the only consistent quantity throughout the cycle. Deliveries are based on gross weight over the weighbridge,      
packouts balance back to the total gross tonnes delivered and growers are paid based on those gross tonnes, albeit soil 
and waste are paid at nil value. 

 Grower payments = all payments made to Growers including Finals and Incentives. 

 

Services Cost 

Formally referred to as Corporation costs, is now clearly defined as "all administrative and operational overheads incurred in 
regulating the supply of potatoes in the State and administering the Act".  

 

 



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2013/2014 
118 

Grower Report 

Profit & Loss by Pool 2014 

Unit

Licenced 

Pools 30-Jun-14
1 2 3 4 TOTAL TOTAL

Hectares Licensed ha 401 305 238 328 1272 1272

Hectares Planted ha 388 314 237 302 1242 1242

Average Ware Yield t/ha 33 42 56 50 44 44

Gross Tonnes Licensed t 16106 14391 14079 15962 60538 60538

Gross Tonnes Delivered t 12,999            13,109            13,361            15,204            54,673          54,673          

Dumping t 174                 118                 436                 293                 1,021            1,021            

POOL AVAILABILITY t 12,825            12,991            12,925            14,911            53,652          53,652          

DOMESTIC

 - Washpackers t 12,825            12,991            12,925            14,911            53,652          53,652          

COMMERCIAL PACKOUT t 12,825            12,991            12,925            14,911            53,652          53,652          

REVENUE

 - Local $ 8,772,935       9,221,833       8,000,537       9,571,165       35,566,470   35,566,470   

$/t 684                 703                 599                 630                 651               651               

COST OF SALES

- Grower Payments $ 7,467,446       7,806,028       6,993,451       7,931,439       30,065,571   30,065,571   

- Retained grower payments $ 214,895          238,604          189,191          310,753          953,443        953,443        

TOTAL $ 7,682,340       8,044,632       7,182,641       8,242,193       31,019,014   31,019,014   

$/t 599                 614                 538                 542                 567               567               

TRADING PROFIT $ 1,090,594       1,177,201       817,896          1,328,973       4,547,456     4,547,456     

SERVICE EXPENSES

 - Employee $ 400,830          468,093          378,252          445,757          1,692,932     1,692,932     

 - Supply & Services $ 587,957          952,934          453,086          681,320          2,675,298     2,675,298     

 - Depreciation $ 4,809              4,809              4,809              18,580            33,009          33,009          

 - Administration                  $ 38,458            60,303            48,980            62,908            210,650        210,650        

 - Accommodation $ 36,174            49,867            22,672            24,995            133,708        133,708        

 - Other Expenses $ 24,119            37,296            23,750            101,733          186,898        186,898        

TOTAL SERVICES $ 1,092,348       1,573,303       931,550          1,335,293       4,932,494     4,932,494     

$/t 84                   120                 70                   88                   90                 90                 

OTHER REVENUE

 - Interest Income $ 28,157            18,751            14,223            20,126            81,257          81,257          

 - Rental Income $ 31,069            9,252              23,902            2,475              66,698          66,698          

 - Other Income $ 362                 37,637            86,409            28,727            153,135        153,135        

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE $ 59,588            65,640            124,535          51,328            301,090        301,090        

TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 166,234          193,280          167,498          185,845          712,856        712,856        

TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ 108,400-          523,742-          156,618-          140,837-          929,597-        929,597-        

POOL PROFIT $ 0                     0                     0                     0                     132,792        132,792        

Description Pool
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Grower Report 

Growing Year 2014 Pools 1- 4 

  

Gradings %
Class 1 40.4%
Class 2 26.4%
Smalls 13.8%
W+S 14.4%
Drybrush 1.9%
Unsaleable Smalls 2.1%
Other 1.2%
Total 100%

Packout Results

Variety    Tonnes %
Almera 233             0.43%
Banana 25               0.05%
Cabaret 34               0.06%
Carisma 1,517          2.77%
Delaware 526             0.96%
Dutch Cream 413             0.75%
Emma 20               0.04%
Harmony 687             1.26%
Inova 9                 0.02%
Kestrel 134             0.24%
Kipfler 149             0.27%
Lady Christl 1,750          3.20%
Laura 721             1.32%
Maris Piper 191             0.35%
Marlin 33               0.06%
Melody 147             0.27%
Mondial 929             1.70%
Mozart 86               0.16%
Nadine 29,807       54.52%
Nicola 180             0.33%
Orla 25               0.05%
Purple Delight 29               0.05%
Red Rascal 173             0.32%
Rodeo 2,318          4.24%
Royal Blue 8,636          15.80%
Ruby Lou 2,703          4.94%
Salad Rose 1                 0.00%
SIFRA 53               0.10%
Soprano 12               0.02%
Virginia Rose 437             0.80%
White Star 2,695          4.93%
Total 54,673       100%

Varieties Delivered During 2014 - Pool 1 to 4
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Paid Grading Summary
(excl Dry Brush, Unsaleable, Other)

Licenced DME vs Delivered DME by District

District Licenced Delivered
Manjimup 6,619          5,909        
Marybrook / Busselton 11,262       8,649        
Metropolitan 5,132          3,919        
Myalup 14,350       12,470     
Pemberton 16,978       17,375     
Gingin / Lancelin 6,197          6,351        
Total 60,538       54,673     

Description Unit Pool Total

Hectares Licensed ha 1,272        
Hectares Planted ha 1,242        
Average Ware Yield t/ha 44             
Gross Tonnes Licensed t 60,538      
Gross Tonnes Delivered t 54,673
Dumping t 1,021
POOL AVAILABILITY t 53,652
DOMESTIC
 - Washpackers t 53,652
COMMERCIAL PACKOUT t 53,652      
REVENUE
 - Local $ 35,566,470
COST OF SALES
 - Grower Payments $ 30,065,571
 - End Point Royalty $ 953,443

Total: $ 31,019,014
TRADING PROFIT $ 4,547,456
SERVICE EXPENSES
 - Employee $ 1,692,932
 - Supply & Services $ 2,675,298
 - Depreciation $ 33,009
 - Administration                  $ 210,650
 - Accommodation $ 133,708
 - Other Expenses $ 186,898

Total: $ 4,932,494
OTHER REVENUE
 - Interest Income $ 81,257
 - Rental Income $ 66,698
 - Other Income $ 153,135

Total: $ 301,090
TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 712,856
TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ (929,597)
POOL PROFIT $ 132,792
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Grower Report 

Gradings %

Class 1 42.2%

Class 2 26.8%

Smalls 14.8%

W+S 11.8%

Dry Brush 1.1%

Unsaleable Smalls 3.2%

Total 100%

Packout Results

Growing year 2014 - Pool 1 
Variety    Tonnes %

Almera 37            0.28%

Cabaret 6               0.05%

Carisma 360          2.77%

Delaware 167          1.28%

Dutch Cream 70            0.54%

Harmony 667          5.13%

Kipfler 16            0.12%

Lady Christl 532          4.10%

Maris Piper 10            0.08%

Marlin 11            0.08%

Mondial 371          2.85%

Nadine 6,093       46.88%

Nicola 31            0.24%

Orla 25            0.19%

Red Rascal 124          0.96%

Rodeo 297          2.28%

Royal Blue 2,017       15.52%

Ruby Lou 960          7.38%

Virginia Rose 104          0.80%

White Star 1,102       8.48%

Total 12,999    100%

Varieties Delivered During 2014 - Pool 1

Class 1
42%

Class 2
27%

Smalls
15%

W+S 
12%

Packout Grading Summary
(excluding Dry Brush, Unsaleable)
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Licenced DME vs Delivered DME by District

District Licenced Delivered
Gingin / Lancelin 4,345       3,786        
Marybrook / Busselton 2,137       1,111        
Metropolitan 1,424       1,072        
Myalup 8,200       7,030        
Total 16,106     12,999     

Description Unit Pool Total

Hectares Licensed ha 401              
Hectares Planted ha 388              
Average Ware Yield t/ha 33                 
Gross Tonnes Licensed t 16,106         
Gross Tonnes Delivered t 12,999
Dumping t 174
POOL AVAILABILITY t 12,825
DOMESTIC
 - Washpackers t 12,825
COMMERCIAL PACKOUT t 12,825         
REVENUE
 - Local $ 8,772,935
COST OF SALES
 - Grower Payments $ 7,467,446
 - End Point Royalty $ 214,895

Total: $ 7,682,340
TRADING PROFIT $ 1,090,594
SERVICE EXPENSES
 - Employee $ 400,830
 - Supply & Services $ 587,957
 - Depreciation $ 4,809
 - Administration                  $ 38,458
 - Accommodation $ 36,174

 - Other Expenses $ 24,119

Total: $ 1,092,348
OTHER REVENUE
 - Interest Income $ 28,157
 - Rental Income $ 31,069
 - Other Income $ 362

Total: $ 59,588
TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 166,234

TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ (108,400)

POOL PROFIT $ 0
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Grower Report 

Payments to Growers - Pool 1 

1st payment includes First Interim Second Final 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 2009/10

delivery incentive Pmt Pmt Pmt Pmt SEASON

POOL-01 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

WHITES 

Class-1 626 143 184 22 974 1,043 1,092 1,064 1,063

Class-2 248 57 78 9 392 372 351 405 499

Small 435 100 124 15 674 692 695 700 714

Dry Brush 382 88 88 19 577 590 515 674 615

YELLOWS

Class-1 653 151 208 22 1,034 1,090 1,325 1,090

Class-2 248 57 86 9 400 390 358 445

Small 444 100 132 13 690 690 735 0

Dry Brush 391 92 92 16 591 0 0 0

REDS

Class-1 697 167 216 19 1,099 1,010 1,215 1,170 1,183

Class-2 245 57 84 8 394 333 322 398 530

Small 195 34 62 21 313 240 478 355 621

Dry Brush 414 103 103 28 647 690 700 722 210

BLUES

Class-1 830 192 247 25 1,295 1,350 1,355 1,260 1,255

Class-2 235 54 88 9 386 380 358 425 525

Small 33 21 42 14 110 380 360 354 662

Dry Brush 443 117 117 45 722 725 710 745 210

KIPFLER

Class-1 1,497 346 386 51 2,280 2,120 1,610 0 0

Class-2 936 216 216 32 1,400 0 0 0 0

Small 873 202 212 30 1,317 1,350 0 0 0

Dry Brush 1,185 274 274 41 1,773 1,350 710 745 210

POOL AVERAGE TOTAL PAID (Incl Winter Incentives) / Tonnes 673 736 741 730 829

Based on PAID Tonnes PRIOR YEARS ====>>>>
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Grower Report 

Gradings %

Class 1 45.3%

Class 2 26.3%

Smalls 13.1%

W+S 11.8%

Drybrush 1.9%

Unsaleable Smalls 1.6%

Total 100%

Packout Results

Growing year 2014 - Pool 2 
Variety    Tonnes %

Almera 55               0.42%

Cabaret 10               0.08%

Carisma 241             1.84%

Delaware 97               0.74%

Dutch Cream 137             1.04%

Harmony 20               0.15%

Inova 9                  0.07%

Kipfler 35               0.27%

Lady Christl 384             2.93%

Maris Piper 56               0.43%

Marlin 21               0.16%

Melody 17               0.13%

Mondial 558             4.26%

Mozart 27               0.21%

Nadine 5,734          43.74%

Nicola 57               0.44%

Purple Delight 7                  0.05%

Red Rascal 48               0.37%

Rodeo 469             3.58%

Royal Blue 2,242          17.10%

Ruby Lou 1,205          9.19%

SIFRA 12               0.09%

Virginia Rose 142             1.08%

White Star 1,523          11.62%

Total 13,109       100%

Varieties Delivered During 2014 - Pool 2

Class 1
45%

Class 2
26%

Smalls
13%

W+S
12%

Packout Grading Summary
(excluding Dry Brush, Unsaleable)

Licenced DME vs Delivered DME by District

District Licenced Delivered
Gingin / Lancelin 1,852          2,564        
Marybrook / Busselton 3,477          2,861        
Metropolitan 3,581          2,829        
Myalup 5,481          4,855        

Total 14,391        13,109     
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Description Unit Pool Total

Hectares Licensed ha 305            
Hectares Planted ha 314            
Average Ware Yield t/ha 42              
Gross Tonnes Licensed t 14,391       
Gross Tonnes Delivered t 13,109
Dumping t 118
POOL AVAILABILITY t 12,991
DOMESTIC
 - Washpackers t 12,991
COMMERCIAL PACKOUT t 12,991       
REVENUE
 - Local $ 9,221,833
COST OF SALES
 - Grower Payments $ 7,806,028
 - End Point Royalty $ 238,604

Total: $ 8,044,632
TRADING PROFIT $ 1,177,201
SERVICE EXPENSES
 - Employee $ 468,093
 - Supply & Services $ 952,934
 - Depreciation $ 4,809
 - Administration                  $ 60,303
 - Accommodation $ 49,867
 - Other Expenses $ 37,296

Total: $ 1,573,303
OTHER REVENUE
 - Interest Income $ 18,751

 - Rental Income $ 9,252

 - Other Income $ 37,637
Total: $ 65,640

TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 193,280
TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ (523,742)
POOL PROFIT $ 0
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Grower Report 

Payments to Growers - Pool 2 

1st payment includes First Interim Second Final 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 2009/10

delivery incentive Pmt Pmt Pmt Pmt SEASON

POOL-02 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

WHITES

Class-1 652 151 155 30 987 978 979 1,069 1,095

Class-2 248 57 59 11 376 413 423 385 536

Small 435 100 105 20 660 694 712 688 727

Dry Brush 381 88 88 17 575 602 563 582 625

YELLOWS

Class-1 678 155 159 31 1,023 847 1,285 1,096 1,095

Class-2 245 57 58 11 371 415 420 434 536

Small 431 99 104 20 655 704 720 725 727

Dry Brush 393 91 91 18 592 602 0 0 625

REDS     

Class-1 720 166 177 33 1,096 1,037 1,210 1,117 1,196

Class-2 243 56 62 11 372 392 417 354 546

Small 142 33 44 6 225 207 482 338 585

Dry Brush 439 101 101 20 661 516 455 734 728

BLUES

Class-1 830 192 195 38 1,255 1,269 1,360 1,201 1,259

Class-2 235 54 56 11 356 381 410 357 526

Small 89 21 24 4 138 219 300 185 650

Dry Brush 506 117 117 23 763 742 730 748 210

KIPFLER

Class-1 1,497 346 346 68 2,257 2,130

Class-2 936 216 216 43 1,411 1,185

Small 873 202 202 40 1,316 1,185

Dry Brush 1,185 274 274 54 1,786 1,355

POOL AVERAGE TOTAL PAID (Incl Winter Incentives) / Tonnes 637 706 557 614 700

Based on PAID Tonnes PRIOR YEARS ====>>>>
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Grower Report 

Growing year 2014 - Pool 3 

Class 1
36% Class 2

27%

Smalls
13%

W+S
16%

Paid Grading Summary
(excl Dry Brush, Unsaleable, Other)

Gradings %

Class 1 36.2%

Class 2 27.2%

Smalls 13.1%

W+S 15.7%

Drybrush 2.7%

Unsaleable Smalls 1.3%

Other 3.9%

Total 100%

Packout Results
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Licenced DME vs Delivered DME by District

District Licenced Delivered
Manjimup 4,244          3,714          
Marybrook / Busselton 576             485             
Metropolitan / Myalup 29               34               
Pemberton 9,230          9,128          
Total 14,079       13,361       

Variety    Tonnes %
Almera 22               0.16%
Banana 22               0.16%
Cabaret 18               0.13%
Carisma 542             4.06%
Delaware 191             1.43%
Dutch Cream 89               0.67%
Kestrel 94               0.71%
Kipfler 47               0.35%
Lady Christl 473             3.54%
Laura 364             2.72%
Maris Piper 26               0.20%
Melody 79               0.59%
Mozart 49               0.37%
Nadine 8,330          62.34%
Nicola 3                 0.02%
Purple Delight 19               0.14%
Rodeo 629             4.71%
Royal Blue 1,852          13.86%
Ruby Lou 264             1.98%
SIFRA 32               0.24%
Virginia Rose 148             1.11%
White Star 70               0.52%

Varieties Delivered During 2014 - Pool 3

Description Unit Total

Hectares Licensed ha 238
Hectares Planted ha 237
Average Ware Yield t/ha 56
Gross Tonnes Licensed t 14,079   
Gross Tonnes Delivered t 13,361
Dumping t 436
POOL AVAILABILITY t 12,925
DOMESTIC
 - Washpackers t 12,925
COMMERCIAL PACKOUT t 12,925
REVENUE
 - Local $ 8,000,537
COST OF SALES
 - Grower Payments $ 6,993,451
 - End Point Royalty $ 189,191

Total: $ 7,182,641
TRADING PROFIT $ 817,896
SERVICE EXPENSES
 - Employee $ 378,252
 - Supply & Services $ 453,086
 - Depreciation $ 4,809
 - Administration                  $ 48,980
 - Accommodation $ 22,672
 - Other Expenses $ 23,750

Total: $ 931,550

OTHER REVENUE

 - Interest Income $ 14,223
 - Rental Income $ 23,902
 - Other Income $ 86,409

Total: $ 124,535
TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 167,498
TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ (156,618)
POOL PROFIT $ 0
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Grower Report 

Payments to Growers - Pool 3 

1st payment includes First Interim Second Final 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 2009/10

delivery incentive Pmt Pmt Pmt Pmt SEASON

POOL-03 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

WHITES  

Class-1 650 150 150 16 966 923 908 873 1,058

Class-2 247 57 57 6 367 372 404 318 458

Small 433 100 100 11 644 680 697 575 701

Dry Brush 371 86 86 9 552 565 487 573 575

YELLOWS   

Class-1 682 157 157 17 1,014 1,043 1,010 1,026

Class-2 248 57 57 6 368 391 420 411

Small 434 100 100 11 645 700 725 676

Dry Brush 372 86 86 9 553 599 355 582

REDS    

Class-1 723 167 167 18 1,075 1,073 1,208 1,154 1,134

Class-2 244 56 56 6 363 410 416 404 505

Small 96 22 22 2 143 458 407 326 535

Dry Brush 428 99 99 11 637 403 705 0 0

BLUES

Class-1 830 192 192 21 1,234 1,350 1,350 1,226 1,235

Class-2 235 54 54 6 349 327 407 358 483

Small 89 21 21 2 133 265 265 137 647

Dry Brush 443 102 102 11 659 555 730 753 0

KIPFLER & BANANA

Class-1 1,497 346 346 37 2,225 2,288

Class-2 873 202 202 22 1,298 1,185

Small 873 202 202 22 1,298 1,185

Dry Brush 1,497 346 346 37 2,225 1,355

POOL AVERAGE TOTAL PAID (Incl Winter Incentives) / Tonnes 587 577 557 614 700

Based on PAID Tonnes PRIOR YEARS ====>>>>



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2013/2014 
126 

Grower Report 

Growing Year 2013 - Pool 4 

Gradings %

Class 1 38.2%

Class 2 25.3%

Smalls 14.1%

W+S 17.6%

Drybrush 1.7%

Unsaleable Smalls 2.1%

Other 0.9%

Total 100%

Packout Results

Variety    Tonnes %

Almera 120             0.79%

Banana 4                 0.02%

Carisma 374             2.46%

Delaware 71               0.47%

Dutch Cream 117             0.77%

Emma 20               0.13%

Kestrel 39               0.26%

Kipfler 51               0.33%

Lady Christl 362             2.38%

Laura 357             2.35%

Maris Piper 98               0.65%

Marlin 1                 0.00%

Melody 51               0.33%

Mozart 10               0.07%

Nadine 9,650          63.46%

Nicola 89               0.59%

Purple Delight 3                 0.02%

Rodeo 923             6.07%

Royal Blue 2,525          16.61%

Ruby Lou 275             1.81%

Salad Rose 1                 0.00%

SIFRA 9                 0.06%

Soprano 12               0.08%

Virginia Rose 43               0.28%

Total 15,204       100%

Varieties Delivered During 2014 - Pool 4

Class 1
38% Class 2

25%
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18%

Paid Grading Summary
(excl Dry Brush, Unsaleable, Other)
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Licenced DME vs Delivered DME by District

District Licenced Delivered
Manjimup 2,375          2,195        
Marybrook / Busselton 5,072          4,192        
Metropolitan / Myalup 767             568           
Pemberton 7,748          8,249        

Total 15,962       15,204     

Description Unit Total

Hectares Licensed ha 328
Hectares Planted ha 302
Average Ware Yield t/ha 50
Gross Tonnes Licensed t 15,962   
Gross Tonnes Delivered t 15,204
Dumping t 293
POOL AVAILABILITY t 14,911
DOMESTIC
 - Washpackers t 14,911
COMMERCIAL PACKOUT t 14,911
REVENUE
 - Local $ 9,571,165
COST OF SALES
 - Grower Payments $ 7,931,439
 - End Point Royalty $ 310,753

Total: $ 8,242,193
TRADING PROFIT $ 1,328,973
SERVICE EXPENSES
 - Employee $ 445,757
 - Supply & Services $ 681,320
 - Depreciation $ 18,580
 - Administration                  $ 62,908
 - Accommodation $ 24,995
 - Other Expenses $ 101,733

Total: $ 1,335,293
OTHER REVENUE
 - Interest Income $ 20,126

 - Rental Income $ 2,475

 - Other Income $ 28,727
Total: $ 51,328

TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 185,845
TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ (140,837)
POOL PROFIT $ 0
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Grower Report 

Payments to Growers - Pool 4 

1st payment includes First Interim Second Final 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 2009/10

delivery incentive Pmt Pmt Pmt Pmt SEASON

POOL-01 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

WHITES 

Class-1 626 143 184 22 974 1,043 1,092 1,064 1,063

Class-2 248 57 78 9 392 372 351 405 499

Small 435 100 124 15 674 692 695 700 714

Dry Brush 382 88 88 19 577 590 515 674 615

YELLOWS

Class-1 653 151 208 22 1,034 1,090 1,325 1,090

Class-2 248 57 86 9 400 390 358 445

Small 444 100 132 13 690 690 735 0

Dry Brush 391 92 92 16 591 0 0 0

REDS

Class-1 697 167 216 19 1,099 1,010 1,215 1,170 1,183

Class-2 245 57 84 8 394 333 322 398 530

Small 195 34 62 21 313 240 478 355 621

Dry Brush 414 103 103 28 647 690 700 722 210

BLUES

Class-1 830 192 247 25 1,295 1,350 1,355 1,260 1,255

Class-2 235 54 88 9 386 380 358 425 525

Small 33 21 42 14 110 380 360 354 662

Dry Brush 443 117 117 45 722 725 710 745 210

KIPFLER

Class-1 1,497 346 386 51 2,280 2,120 1,610 0 0

Class-2 936 216 216 32 1,400 0 0 0 0

Small 873 202 212 30 1,317 1,350 0 0 0

Dry Brush 1,185 274 274 41 1,773 1,350 710 745 210

POOL AVERAGE TOTAL PAID (Incl Winter Incentives) / Tonnes 673 736 741 730 829

Based on PAID Tonnes PRIOR YEARS ====>>>>


